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3

CHAIR MOLINA:

(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

2

Committee meeting for July 8th is now in session.

3

Good morning, Members.

4

attendance the Vice Chairperson of the Committee

5

Member Tavares and Committee Members Kane and

6

Pontanilla, excused is Committee Member Hokama.

7

have two items on our agenda, Committee Members, but

8

before we do that the Chair will entertain testimony

9

from the public.

We have for the record in

We

At this time, the Chair would like to go over

10
11

a few ground rules before we have our testimony.

12

All the Committee Members, you will have three

13

minutes to testify -- or shall I say members of the

14

public, not Committee Members, three minutes to

15

testify with a minute to conclude, and we ask that

16

you state your name and whatever organization that

17

you're representing.

18

phones and pagers to minimize any disturbances that

19

we have.

20

disturbances going on.

21

today.

22

And please turn off all cell

But as you can tell, we already have some
So please help us out here

Before I continue with public testimony, the

23

Chair would like to recognize other personnel in

24

attendance as well.

25

Department the Director Mr. Coloma-Agaran, and

We have from the Public Works
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1

coming from the corporation Counsel's Office will be

2

Ms. cindy Young, and we have our Committee Secretary

3

Jo-Ann Sato and Committee Analyst Mr. Gary Saldana.

4

At this time, committee Secretary, do we have

5

anyone signed up for public testimony on either of

6

our two agenda items?

7

MS. SATO:

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

No.
Okay.

So far no one has signed up for

public testimony.

The Chair will leave it open for

10

-- leave public testimony open for another ten

11

minutes.

12

testimony, the Chair will close testimony for today.

13

Any objections to that, Committee Members?

At 9:15 if no one has signed up for public

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

ITEM NO. 30:

17
18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

No objection.

Thank you very much.

ESTABLISHING A 120-MINUTE PARKING LIMIT ON
A PORTION OF MARKET STREET IN WAILUKU
(C.C. 04-85)

Okay.

Our first item is Item No. 30, which

19

has to do with establishing a 120-minute parking

20

limit on a portion of Market Street in Wailuku.

21

To participate in our festivities today for

22

that item, we have from the Police Department Mr. --

23

excuse me, Officer Keith Taguma to give his

24

comments, and we've also invited victor Flocco as

25

resource personnel from the Happy Valley Service,
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Incorporated, to give any comments, also Donald

2

Kosaka from Happy Valley Service, and from the

3

Wailuku Main Street Association Jocelyn Perreira,

4

and she also did invite Jonathan Starr, the

5

Chairperson for the Wailuku Community Association.

6

Members, if you recall, the committee

7

received a proposed bill which was referred by

8

Council Chairman Dain Kane relating to establishing

9

a 120-minute parking restriction along a portion of

10

Market Street in Happy Valley.

11

Market Street and Happy Valley noted that parking is

12

taken by individuals that remain there throughout

13

the day, therefore, impacting the ability of

14

potential patrons to park.

15

The businesses along

The matter was previously reviewed by this

16

Committee at its meeting of June 17th, 2004.

The

17

Committee requested additional information as it

18

relates to defining proposed parking stalls, enhance

19

pedestrian safety measures, and cost estimates for

20

interim improvements, and the origin of the survey

21

of property owners for the proposed parking

22

restrictions.

23

provided the Committee with the information

24

requested, and so therefore, I'd like to consider

25

potential action on this proposed bill today.

The Public Works Department then
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6

So at this time, the Chair will entertain,

2

first of all, the -- getting comments from the

3

Public Works Director Mr. Coloma-Agaran to give us a

4

brief overview provided by comments from the Police

5

Department.

6

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Mr. Coloma-Agaran?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

As -- as you'll

7

note at the last meeting, there were a number of

8

questions that -- that the different Council Members

9

had about the proposal one of which was concerns

10

regarding safety at the intersection of North Market

11

Street with Piihana, Mokuhau and Kahekili Highway.

12

We do include in our response of June 21st --

13

actually, June 30 a schematic of what we plan to

14

install at that intersection.

15

We would note that both improvements will

16

include the addition of a landscaped medium at the

17

intersection of Market Street and Piihana.

18

medium will have a pedestrian opening which will

19

shorten the distance that pedestrians have to

20

traverse across Market Street by allowing them to

21

stop before continuing to cross the road.

22

The

In addition, we will be installing textured

23

concrete pavement with the crosswalks across Market

24

Street and Mokuhau Road.

25

for aesthetics, but it will also serve to make the

The intent is primarily
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1

crosswalk more prominent to motorists.

2

that schematic is attached to our response.

3

And again,

After the last committee meeting, my staff

4

and I did walk through Happy Valley on June 24th to

5

discuss the parking situation with several of the

6

property owners.

7

current parking locations along the roadway,

8

Engineering Division had developed an interim

9

on-street parking plan for the section between

10

Kapoai Place and Alahele Drive as shown on the

11

attachment to our June 30th letter.

12

Based on our discussions on the

The person -- the property owner who

13

initiated this request, actually, indicated that he

14

would be satisfied with a loading zone stall in

15

front of his property and perhaps the adjoining

16

property owner instead of a two-hour parking limit.

17

If you remember, the discussion was really

18

that this portion of the Market street project is

19

probably about eighteen months away as far as being

20

installed.

21

were to wait, it -- you'd be looking at waiting for

22

at least two years.

23

striping approximately 200 feet of designated

24

parking would be about $3,000.

25

So if -- if the parking restrictions

We estimate that signing and

The survey that was referred to the last
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1

meeting was proposed and conducted by our

2

Engineering Division personnel in response to a

3

request by Mr. Mitsuo Kamita and Mr. Mel Pomeroy for

4

restrictions and parking along the frontage.

5

In our walk down that stretch of Market

6

street, we

we did note that the testimony from

7

the Police is correct.

8

there are no sidewalks.

9

down on that side of the street right now is

On one side of the street
A lot of the parking that's

10

actually on private property based on just sort of a

11

rough

12

poles are, which should be -- which basically mark

13

where our right-of-way ends.

14

you walk down that stretch, you'll notice that a lot

15

of the parking actually is on private property on

16

that side.

17

some areas that -- that are marked for parking, but

18

they probably need to be restriped.

roughly looking at where the telephone

But if -- if you -- if

On the side with sidewalks there are

with that, I also have Nolly Yagin who is our

19

20

Traffic Engineer who can respond to any specific

21

questions you might have about the proposed interim

22

signage.

23
24
25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Director.
Committee Members, before I proceed with

questioning for the Director, I'd like to ask
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9

Officer Taguma for any comments he may have.
MR. TAGUMA:

Good morning.

I'm Officer Taguma with the

3

Police Department.

The last time I testified I just

4

informed you folks of observations after we received

5

this request.

6

that comments by the Public Works, a loading zone,

7

we do have loading zones already in the county.

The only thing I have new regarding

8

What is a loading zone?

9

vague in the County right now.

The thing is so
When people park

10

their cars on Market street in a loading zone, they

11

unload one fish at a time, they're loading up a cup

12

of coffee.

13

unenforceable.

14

use the loading zones is only by permit.

15

vehicles have to have a permit.

16

It's so vague that it's basically
The City and county of Honolulu, to
Commercial

So it's good to have a loading zone, but what

17

is a loading zone and what constitutes loading and

18

unloading.

19

groceries in front of a loading zone.

20

loading.

21

have to sit there and watch them walk in and out of

22

a building?

23

Some people say I'm picking up my
That's

How long is loading and unloading?

Do I

And again, when it reaches the jUdiciary

24

level, it's not going to hold any weight.

25

basically unenforceable unless they get more
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1

detailed for loading zones.

There are some loading

2

zones in the county that have time, time

3

restrictions, 15 minutes.

4

zone, there's also laws where handicapped people can

5

park in a loading zone, and they can park there up

6

to a certain time limit.

You create a loading

So a loading zone can end up to be a private

7
8

parking stall just like the regular parking stalls

9

on Market street are.

So that's the only thing I

10

have with the loading zone.

11

idea if they can define what a loading zone is and

12

make it a little more enforceable.

13
14

CHAIR MOLINA:

It's -- it's a good

Thank you, Officer Taguma.
Members, at this time the Chair will

15

entertain questions for the Director of Public Works

16

or Officer Taguma at this time.

17

with Member Kane.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Let's start off

Thank you, Chair.

19

Just for clarification, the map that's

20

connected to the June 30th, Director Agaran, are the

21

arrows inversed, are they supposed to be pointing

22

inwards and not outwards on the bottom of that page?

23

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

24

question is.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I -- I don't understand what your

Right now, okay, if you look at the
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1

top two-hour parking signs that you folks have

2

denoted on -- on the -- on this sheet, you notice

3

that the arrows on the two, two-hour parking signs

4

are pointing inwards towards each other.

5

if you look at the bottom, that same page on the

6

bottom, you have the no parking loading zone, arrow

7

pointing both ways, 8:00 a.m. to 6:00, and that's

8

the one in front of Pomeroy's place, but then the

9

next two set of two-hour parking the arrows are

10

pointing out.

11

in?

Aren't they supposed to be pointing

And it's just for clarification.

12

And then

I don't

13

know if this is me or just a mix up or -- but I'm

14

looking at the road -- the road painting, what you

15

folks are looking at, and it shows the parking area.

16

So --

17

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

What -- what you're looking at is the

18

-- would be the schematic for construction.

19

signage, when it's actually installed, would be

20

actually turned the other way.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Yeah, that's what I'm asking.

So the

so--

Yeah, so that's what -- signs, when

23

they're installed, they would actually be installed

24

the other way.

25

for next -- the first two-hour parking sign

They'd be looking the other way.
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12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Oh, because we're looking at it so if

2

you face it the other way, it's going to be pointing

3

in, that's what you're saying?

4

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Right.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, okay, okay.

That's interesting.

I understand that,

6

I'm sorry.

I have -- I have no

7

questions, Chair.

8

kind of confused that the arrows are pointing -- but

9

if it's in the ground and looking from the road at

It was just that.

I was just

10

the sign, then I guess when you turn it it's -- then

11

they point in?

12

And before I move on, Mr. Agaran, you

13

understand what I'm saying, yeah, you understand my

14

-- my curiosity to the signs and what you're --

15

you're depicting?

16

the road looking at the signs and the signs are in

17

the ground, so that's when the signs are going to

18

turn and the arrows are going to be pointing in at

19

each other, is that what you're saying?

20

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

23

24
25

So your comment is if you're on

Right.

The--

Okay.
-- the no parking areas will have

arrows pointing at each other.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, okay.

And it's just because

it's turned this way, it's pointing out, that -RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

Thank you.

4

else's.

5

Chair.

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

No, I understand, I understand.

It's my -- my -- my issue, not anybody

I -- I don't have any other questions,

Okay.

Thank you, Member Kane.

Member Pontanilla, do you have any questions

7
8

Yeah, if -- if you -- well --

for either the Public Works Director or -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12
13

Yeah.

-- Officer Taguma?
Gil, you -- you mentioned about

two locations as far as no parking loading zone?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Yes.

I -- I believe that the request

14

would be at the beginning of the stretch that we're

15

talking about in front of Mr. Pomeroy's -- in front

16

of Mr. Pomeroy's shop there's one parking stall, and

17

then also in front of the I believe it's an

18

appliance repair -- repair store --

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

25

Oh, right -- right

-- is another --- next to each other?

Yeah.
Okay.

I think it's because they might have

initiated the request.

And so for them, they
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1

believe that a loading -- you know, a loading zone

2

limited in time would serve the purposes for what

3

what they're looking for, which is to have people

4

open up those parking stalls in front of their

5

businesses, you know, at a reasonable

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah.

Okay.

At

at the --

7

on -- on the second sheet of this drawing, the

8

the intersection, I guess, Kahekili, piihana,

9

Mokuhau, as well as Lower Market, motorists coming

10

from Waihee into Wailuku town, are we going to have

11

any warning lights to say that we have this major

12

crosswalk entering Happy Valley or some indication

13

to the motorists?

14

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Right now we don't and -- but that's

15

something that could be included in what we -- what

16

we should install.

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, could you, please?

18

Because in Kahului we -- we do have that -- couple

19

intersections that have the warning lights, one on

20

Papa and Hina and the other one on Kam and Hina.

21

Those warning lights are -- ever since we put up the

22

warning lights, you know, we haven't had any -- any

23

motorist going into the

the -- the yards in these

24

particular areas.

I think it would help

25

notifying the motorists that, you know, some major

So I
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intersection is coming up.

2

The other thing, in regards to what Officer

3

Taguma had noted, handicapped cars can park in the

4

no loading zone, do we have any idea how we're going

5

to handle that?

6

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

If -- if that's the -- the way the

7

ordinance reads right now for handicapped parking in

8

this County, I would expect that they would still be

9

allowed to park in the no loading zone if that was

10

established.

11

the interim doesn't have loading zones.

12

based on a two-hour parking limit.

13

The schematic that we have attached on

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

It's all

Two-hour parking, okay.

Maybe

14

a question for Corp Counsel in regards to definition

15

of a loading zone and how do we enforce it.

16

MS. YOUNG:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

At this point how

17

how most loading zones are defined is that it's for

18

expeditious loading or unloading of passengers or

19

freight and for a period of time not to exceed 15

20

minutes.

21

little differently, for example, certain zones are

22

for school buses only.

23

certain -- certain zones are defined a

And the handicapped parking, I believe that's

24

governed by HRS.

I don't believe we have a

25

provision specifically -- yeah, specifically
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regarding handicapped parking.

2

check the -- the State law on that.

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Pontanilla.

Member Tavares, do you have any questions?

5

6

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

8

Okay.

So we'd have to

None.

Okay.

Thank you.

The Chair has a couple

of questions for the Director.

Mr. Coloma-Agaran, I

9

I assume all the business and property owners

10

had a chance to look at this proposed plan and then,

11

again, I guess, I don't know if you touched on it in

12

your opening remarks, but the general reception of

13

this plan if you -- assuming you did show it to the

14

business and property owners, what was the feeling?

15

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Actually, this plan was put together

16

after our site visit.

17

business owners in the area probably haven't seen

18

the proposal yet.

19

have that this is being considered is really the

20

original legislation and the original survey that we

21

were looking at.

22

the basis of the responses we received on the

23

original survey.

24
25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

So the property owners, the

The only indication they would

So we're

Thank you.

we're still going on

And again, how many

parking stalls are being proposed?

And I know you
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1

touched on the cost of the striping at $3,000.

2

you perceive that with the parking restrictions that

3

cost-wise it being beneficial as it ties into the

4

roadway construction, doing this all prior to the

5

future roadway construction?

6

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

So

For this particular stretch, you're

7

-- you're really just talking about between five and

B

seven stalls.

9

already in existence.

I think four of them are actually
The additional stalls are

10

going to be -- would be fronting a chain link-fence,

11

which right now is not -- I don't believe is

12

striped.

13

side of the street.

And it -- it'd all be basically on one

14

The other side of the street, as I mentioned

15

in my opening remarks, the existing parking for the

16

most part is actually on private property, and those

17

are the areas that I believe Officer Taguma

1B

mentioned last time are a series of fairly open

19

lots, no -- no sidewalks.

20

large driveways, really.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

They're basically used as

Okay.

Members, any

22

other comments or questions for this item?

23

Kane?

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Just a comment, Chair.

Member

with respects

to the -- the loading zone consideration, I would
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1

ask you, Chair, respectfully to consider us taking

2

up a loading zone question separately and having

3

some thought put into that as far as refining our

4

loading zone ordinance, you know, that component,

5

and consider just making this the same as the other

6

-- the two-hour parking.

7

As stated, you know, a lot of these areas

8

have -- are private property and have some parking

9

areas for private parking, and they could utilize

10

those existing private parking areas for their

11

loading and unloading needs.

12

provide the flow of -- of people coming in and out,

13

and it's just a -- I think it's a public good to

14

have this no parking and allowing people to come in

15

and park, get their things done in Happy Valley and

16

-- and then be out of there.

17

I think the idea is to

So I'm supportive of this with the exception

18

of perhaps considering changing the -- the loading

19

zone I won't call it a proposal but the schematic

20

that's here in front of us --

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

24
25

Uh-huh.
and consider that as well in the

no parking, the two-hour no parking.
CHAIR MOLINA:

So -- so basically you're saying consider

it as a separate Committee item, we can address in
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19

the future.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

As far as the loading zone issue that

3

Officer Taguma brings forward, I think it would be

4

prudent for us to take that up separately.

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Sure.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And that way it can involve, you

7

know, the County as a whole and not just Market

8

Street in front of Mel Pomeroy's place.

9

nothing against him, I'm just saying, you know, it

10

-- it just seems like it would be better for us to

11

look at it instead of doing piecemeal --

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And -- and

Uh-huh.
and -- and creating some loopholes

14

that were already mentioned by the officer as well

15

as, you know, other comments that were made.

16

But other than that, I think -- I think us

17

taking this step, and I know you had the question,

18

Chair, of, you know, the -- the expenditure,

19

obviously these people are taxpaying citizens and,

20

you know, anything we can do to improve and us

21

hearing the two-year possibility, you know, as far

22

as the time before they actually get the permanent

23

changes along Market street, I think this is

24

something that's well worth us making -- making

25

Happy Valley a little bit better for now and then
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1

just continuing to -- to refine Happy Valley and

2

making it, you know, more appealing, you know, as

3

far as getting the parking done right --

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

Uh-huh.
and everything else and we can --

and we can work towards that end.
But I'll be supportive, Mr. Chair, of -- of

7
8

us working with this ordinance, and -- and I'm

9

anticipating perhaps you amending the original as we

10

spoke in the

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

Right.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

previous for your recommendation

13

and then ask you to consider the -- removing of the

14

loading zone in front of that one slot and -- and

15

changing it to a two-hour parking.

16

be very supportive of that and I look forward for

17

your recommendation, Chair.

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And I -- I can

Thank you.
And also, Chair, I'm sorry, and my

20

last comment is thanking the Director for physically

21

going out and speaking to a lot of the property

22

owners.

23

that -- that Director Agaran went out and spoke to

24

them, and they were very pleased that he came out

25

and did talk story as far as going out there.

I had the chance as well to get comment
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1

just wanted to thank him for going out and taking

2

the initiative to do this.

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Member Kane.

Any other comments before the Chair makes his

4
5

recommendation?

6

would also like to recognize captain Hill and

7

Officer Burgess in -- in the gallery, the Police

8

Department, and also Mr. Yagin from the Public Works

9

Department.
Okay.

10
11

Okay.

Prior to that, the Chair

with that being said, Members, the

Chair

12

MR. SALDANA:

Mr. Chair?

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

14

MR. SALDANA:

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

RECESS:

17

RECONVENE:

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Mr. Saldana?
Yes.

Could I ask for a five-minute recess?

Five-minute recess.

(Gavel.)

9:25 a.m.
9:35 a.m.

(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

19

Committee meeting of July 8th is now back in

20

session.

21

extended break.

22

Thank you very much, Members, for that

The Chair needed to go over just a few things

23

with the staff and the Director, and the Chair at

24

this time would like to make the Committee aware

25

that the Chair would like to entertain a motion to
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1

pass the bill as proposed and revised and the filing

2

of the communication.

3

like to make the committee aware of some language

4

changes on the -- the ordinance, the proposed

5

ordinance.

But prior to that, I would

If you look on the back where it's

6

7

underscored, No. 13, where it currently reads, "On

8

the east side of Market street, from Kapoai Place to

9

Piihana Road," based on recommendations from the

10

Department, in order to have the parking

11

restrictions be reflected on both sides of the

12

street the following is being recommended: if we

13

delete the words the east side of and we delete

14

Piihana Road and sUbstitute in place of Piihana Road

15

Alahele Drive.

16

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

So move.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Second.

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

It's been moved by Member Tavares, seconded

19

by Member Kane.

20

motion, any comments?

21

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Member Tavares, as the maker of the

No, no comments.
Any other questions?

Okay.

All

23

those in favor of the motion signify it by saying

24

"aye".

25

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
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1

CHAIR MOLINA:

2

VOTE:

3

4

All those opposed?

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
EXC.:

5

MOTION CARRIED.

6

ACTION:

counci1members Kane, pontanilla,
Vice-Chair Tavares, and Chair Molina.
None.
None.
Councilmember Hokama.

Recommendinq FIRST READING of revised
bill and FILING of communication.

7

8
9

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

The motion passes unanimously.

Thank you very much, Members.

That was fast.

Members, we did have two members of the

10

11

public sign up for testimony for Item No. 32 which

12

we are about to take up.

13

entertain testimony from the two individuals who

14

have signed up prior to the 9:15

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

So at this time we'll

Mr. Chair.

Member Tavares?
You were mentioning earlier that the

18

Planning Department wasn't going to be coming until

19

10:30?

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

Yes.

We just -- during the break we

21

notified them that we'd like them up here a lot

22

faster.

23

minutes.

24

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

25

So they should be coming in here in a few

Well, should -- should they be here

to hear the testimony also?
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CHAIR MOLINA:

If that is the recommendation of the body,

2

we can do that.

3

adjust it to where the -- prior to the Chair's

4

recommendation we can have testimony from these two

5

individuals after we've had our deliberations, prior

6

to the Chair's recommendation, we can do it -- do

7

that as well.
Mr. Saldana, did Planning say they -- are

8
9

10

Or what we can do, the Chair can

they coming up on time or they still delayed?
MR. SALDANA:

We told them -- we asked them if -- if they

11

could come up right away and they said they would

12

give word to them immediately.

13

asked representatives from Fire control, Planning,

14

and -- and Liquor Control as well to -- to be

15

present.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

18

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20
21

So both -- we've

We have Liquor Control here too.

Okay.
Chair?

We -- we do have Liquor Control.

Member

Tavares?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, could -- could we have a recess

22

until all the -- all the people are here because I

23

think everybody should hear what everybody else has

24

to say because this issue is one that has gotten

25

attention from various groups.

And -- and perhaps
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1

if all the administration can hear what the

2

testimony is or what the discussion is and concerns

3

from each of the departments, it might help to

4

actually, you know, make the meeting go a little

5

smoother instead of having us repeat what somebody

6

else said later.

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

All right.

If there are no

8

objections, Members, the Chair will call for a

9

recess until all of the resource personnel are here

10

for Item No. 32.

11

of the Chair.

12

RECESS: 9:38 a.m.

13

RECONVENE:

14

ITEM NO. 32:

Okay.

Recess subject to the call

(Gavel.)

9:43 a.m.

WORK EXEMPT FROM PERMIT (TEMPORARY TENTS)
(C.C. 04-68)

15
16

CHAIR MOLINA:

(Gavel.)

now back in session.

17

Committee Members, at this time we'll proceed first

18

with the Department of Health, Mr. Miyabara.

19

understanding is he is under a tight time schedule.

20

So he'll give us his brief overview first on this

21

item.

22

background first.

23

The

My

But before we do that, let me give you some

we did receive this proposed bill from

24

councilmember Mateo.

The Chair would like to

25

recognize Councilmember Mateo to our Committee
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1

proceedings today.

2

building permit

3

exempt building permit requirements and the

4

installation of temporary tents for events sponsored

5

by nonprofit organizations and events on County

6

property that do not exceed 72 hours.

7

family parties, camping and tents that are removed

8

by 6:00 p.m. on the same day of installation are

9

exempted from obtaining building permits.

10

This bill would exempt from
the bill, I guess, basically

Currently,

We first discussed this item back in March 22

11

of this year on Molokai, and as a result the

12

committee requested additional information from the

13

following departments:

14

Planning Department, as well as corporation Counsel

15

and the Parks as well.

16

binders, Members, you'll find the comments from the

17

various departments.

18

Chair would like to take a look at possible

19

revisions to the proposed bill and possible

20

enhancements to the building permit process for

21

temporary tents.

22

Fire and Public safety,

And as you'll note in your

And at this time today, the

Now although the -- our proposed bill does

23

not impact review by the state Department of Health,

24

the Department of Planning, Fire and Public Safety,

25

and Liquor Control have requested to have these
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 7/8/04

27

1

representatives here to basically educate us and

2

advise us on how the process works as it relates to

3

securing permits for temporary tents.

4

hope that -- that as we gain a better understanding

5

of the process, it will assist the Committee in

6

determining the, I guess, best solution to the

7

concerns noted in the correspondence with your

8

binders.

And it is my

So at this time I'd like to call up

9

10

Mr. Miyabara from the Department of Health, if he

11

would like to come up here and take a seat.

12

all of our department representatives, you could

13

just basically give us a -- a real brief overview,

14

nothing too extensive but just something -- just in

15

a nutshell just basically explain how the process

16

works with your department.

17

MR. MIYABARA:

Yeah.

okay.

And to

Mr. Miyabara?

I'm Ed Miyabara with the state

18

Health Department, and I was chosen to represent the

19

Maui District Health Office, you know.

20

basically, I guess, the Health Department signs off

21

on all building permit applications.

22

the agencies that do sign off on the applications.

23

But

We're one of

And in this instance, for tents and temporary

24

tents and structures, we have no problems if they

25

don't -- if they are exempt from applying for a
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1

permit, because in our situation the only time we

2

would be concerned with is if it's a food event or

3

some kind of a -- like a Taste of Lahaina or

4

something like that.

5

But we do get to review their submittals on

6

the temporary food permit applications which is

7

issued by the Health Department, and at that time we

8

do require a site plan and any specific information

9

requiring, you know, like hand sinks, the stations

10

and all of that.

11

regarding the exemptions.

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

So we have no adverse comments

Thank you, Mr. Miyabara.

Committee Members, any questions for

13
14

Mr. Miyabara from the State Department of Health?

15

Member Kane?

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Miyabara, thank you for being with us

17
18

this morning.

Do your comments also include the

19

requested exemption by amending the original

20

language?

21

correspondence to us asking for additional

22

exemptions.

23

that additional request?

We had some -- some written

24

MR. MIYABARA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Have you had a chance to take a look at

Not -- not -- not as of today.
Okay.

Perhaps maybe, Chair, your
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1

staff can provide Mr. Miyabara with that additional

2

-- since in your opening comments it seems that we

3

may be taking a look at broadening the request for

4

-- for your recommendation and possibly vote.

5

Mr. Miyabara can take a look at that, and then we

6

can call him back after he had a chance to take a

7

look at that additional request.

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

So noted.

MR. MIYABARA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

MR. MIYABARA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16
17

18

We'll get that to you, Mr. Miyabara,

and then

11

15

Then

it.

Okay.
-- you can respond --

Sure.
-- after you had a chance to look at

I'm done.

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Kane.

Member

Tavares?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair.

Thank you, Mr. Miyabara, also, for being

19

20

here.

You are, as you stated, signing off on

21

permits related to food anyway.

22

MR. MIYABARA:

Right, right.

23

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

24

MR. MIYABARA:

25

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

People have to have a permit.

Uh-huh, uh-huh.
So I -- I took your comments as you
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1

spoke that it was not really necessary for you to

2

sign off on a tent permit of any kind --

3

MR. MIYABARA:

That's correct.

4

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

5

MR. MIYABARA:

-- unless there was food.

That's correct.

Because most of these

6

temporary structures, you know, they have no

7

applicable health, you know --

8

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

9

MR. MIYABARA:

-- requirements so.

10

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

11

MR. MIYABARA:

12

Uh-huh.

Okay.

I mean, it doesn't impact the public health

so.

13

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

MR. MIYABARA:

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

Uh-huh.
So it's just -- yeah, so that

I

16

-- I think what Mr. Kane's question was kind of

17

directed to that concern that if you were speaking

18

just to what's before us in the -- on the floor

19

which is talking about nonprofits on certain county

20

parks properties, that if it were any tent on any

21

property, you could, you know, you could -- your

22

comments were generally about tents --

23

MR. MIYABARA:

That's correct.

24

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

25

MR. MIYABARA:

-- in general.

Yes
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VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

2

MR. MIYABARA:

Okay.

Yeah, because -- well, my personal feeling

3

is that, you know, to facilitate the permitting

4

process, I mean --

5

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

6

MR. MIYABARA:

Uh-huh.

for a temporary tent, you know, it's --

7

they got to go through the hoops and loops of the

8

same

9
10

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:
MR. MIYABARA:

-- you know, like somebody applying for a

11

hotel.

12

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

13

MR. MIYABARA:

14

Uh-huh.

It doesn't make sense, you know, so.
Right.

So I -- I think I'm in favor of your

proposals.

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Any other questions for

17

Mr. Miyabara at this time?

18

thanks Mr. Miyabara for your time today.

19

okay.

The Chair

Prior to the Chair getting comments from the

20

Lieutenant English of the Fire Department, the Chair

21

would like to recognize again Councilmember Mateo as

22

the introducer of this proposed ordinance.

23

Mateo, do you have any comments?

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Yeah, I do.

Member

Chairman, Chairman, thank you.

I'd like to just perhaps share some
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1

general information as to how we got -- how we

2

actually got started with trying to come up with

3

amending this particular ordinance.
in this year, our office

4

Earlier in

5

received a lot of

6

calls from several of our island's nonprofit

7

organizations.

8

on Molokai primarily do their major fund-raisers in

9

events that requires the erection of tents and --

a lot of letters and telephone

The -- these nonprofit organizations

10

and such, you know, facilities.

11

functions are normally held in our county parks.

12

And all of these

The problem that they experience is they do

13

these functions on a yearly basis, this is a given,

14

this is a calendar, and every year they go through

15

the permitting process.

16

remember that our island is also all SMA.

17

process becomes a little more difficult and a little

18

more taxing for our nonprofit organizations.

And one needs to also
So the

19

The proposed bill, Chairman, for the

20

installation of the temporary tents would involve

21

the elimination for the need for a building permit

22

for any temporary tent installed for less than 72

23

hours on County property.

24

exempts from building permit requirements the

25

installation of temporary tents for the following:

The proposed bill also
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1

one, events sponsored by nonprofit organizations,

2

and two, events in county parks and recreational

3

facilities that continue no more for -- no more than

4

72 hours.

5

That was how the whole thing got started.

In actuality, the initial intent when we

6

first started talking about this particular bill

7

earlier in the year, the -- the thrust was then to

8

create a pilot project for Molokai to see whether or

9

not an exemption or a waiver of this nature could

10

actually, you know, like assist our communities'

11

needs as well as taking the opportunity to see

12

whether a similar program can work countywide.

13

That, however, was not -- you know, was kind of like

14

bypassed and we just went through trying to see the

15

possibility of working on the amendment to the

16

ordinance.

17

As -- as such, Chairman, if you take a look

18

at the nonprofit organizations that are listed,

19

those who have provided support, those who have

20

provided inquiries into the possibilities of

21

changes, you know, are listed also on your -- on

22

your agenda.

23

initially how it got started.

24
25

So with that being said, that was

And at this particular point, you know,
before your Committee, Chairman, I -- you know, I
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1

gladly listen to the committee Members, I will

2

gladly listen to, you know, like the public's

3

testimony and nothing is in concrete.

4

this is a starting point.

5

for us to take a look at, you know, whether an

6

ordinance change such as this, you know, is

7

beneficial to our community.

8

subject to, you know, your -- your Committee at this

9

particular point.

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

11

This is

This is the opportunity

And again, it is

Thank you very much, Chairman.

Thank you very much, Councilmember Mateo.
Members, at this time we do -- I do want to

12

continue with the -- I guess, hearing from the

13

various departments, but we do have two testifiers

14

waiting.

15

prefer to have the people testify?

16

of our resource personnel here, by the way.

17

the will of the body to hear the testifiers first or

18

would you like to continue with the presentation

19

from the department and then have the testifiers

20

give comments?

21

Kane?

22

If it's the will of the body, would you

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

We do have all

The Chair is open to either.

Is it

Member

I have no objections to hearing our

23

-- our departmental comments first, and that way we

24

can hear public testimony before we start getting

25

into any type of deliberation.
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CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

So noted.

The Chair will proceed as

originally planned.
Next to testify -- not testify but to give

3

4

comments on this matter, we have Lieutenant English

5

from the Fire Department.

6

MR. ENGLISH:

Okay.

Good morning, council, I'm Lieutenant

7

Scott English representing the Fire Prevention

8

Office.

9

As far as the bill proposed, I can see kind

10

of a major problem with it.

11

there's a chapter specifically for temporary

12

structures and tents that I need to enforce.

13

you waive an exemption for 72 hours, like I said, I

14

-- I don't see -- I don't see how I can be

15

enforcing the -- the minimum requirements of -- as

16

far as the tent setback, if it needs to be flame

17

retardant, and extinguishers and whatever is needed

18

for the proper set up and operation of the tents.

19

In our Fire Code,

So if

From what I've been hearing from the public,

20

it's -- I can usually turn around the plans if

21

everything comes to me within a half-a-day or

22

one-day period.

23

as long as I have everything that I need.

24

councilman Mateo said, it's the SMA problem when

25

people put up a tent for one day and they need a

So I don't really hold up the plans
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SMA, and that kind of holds up the permit process.

2

I wouldn't mind being the -- the only body to

3

review the plans because I think the Fire Code has

4

the only requirements for temporary structures, how

5

it -- how it should be set up.

6

speed up the process, I think I'm willing to take

7

that on to help -- help out the process.

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Lieutenant English.
Committee Members, questions?

9

10

And if that would

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you.

Member Mateo?
Perhaps at

11

this point if I can ask Corp Counsel to clarify, you

12

know, the -- the fact that this proposed bill does

13

not regulate the additional permit requirement such

14

as Fire.

15

MS. YOUNG:

Yes, that would be correct if, for example, if

16

Fire's reviews are required by the Fire Code, then,

17

yes, that would still be a requirement, just not a

18

building code requirement as well as certain

19

planning approvals like SMAs.

20

Perhaps the one difficulty is that the

21

building permit process is where these -- where the

22

-- you know, where the structure gets routed, the

23

plan for the structure gets routed.

24

Fire would know that a tent is going to be at a

25

certain place and whether or not they have to, you

So that's how
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1

know, have certain (inaudible) or what not.

2

would have to figure out what alternative they could

3

use, you know.

4

by complaint.

5

lot of other things are enforced.

6

might be their concern.

7
8

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

It -- it would maybe be enforcement
I mean, I know that's kind of how a
So that -- that

Thank you, Member Mateo.

Any other questions for the Fire Department
or Corp Counsel at this time?

Seeing none, thank

10

you very much, Lieutenant English.

11

Member Kane?

12

So they

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No.

Oh, sorry,

So with respects to the routing

13

issue, so currently as it's stated or as the -- the

14

requirement for a permit, if we exempt it, I guess

15

the point that's being made is that now the Fire

16

Department is taken out of the loop because now

17

we're going to get these exemptions, and therefore,

18

there's going to be no overview from the Fire

19

Department on

20

requested.

21

on these -- what's being

Is -- is that -- is that what I just heard
and -- and so we need to at least

22

you say, and

23

address that and figure out how we can keep the Fire

24

Department in the loop so they can continue to do

25

their job to insure that we have the -- the fire
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1

prevention issues still being dealt with prior to

2

these folks coming up -- you know, putting temporary

3

structures.

4
5

6

7

8
9

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Kane.

I think you make a

good point with that.
Can I get comments from the Department,
Mr. Coloma-Agaran?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Maybe I should just clarify what we're

talking about here.

In the building permit process,

10

we do route the building permit application to DOH,

11

the Fire Prevention Bureau, and the Planning

12

Department.

13

have separate I -- I don't know if you want to call

14

them permits, but things that they will -- that you

15

need in order to have certain kinds of operations in

16

these tents.

17

But each of those other departments do

So it does serve right now as a signal to

18

those other agencies that someone's applied for a

19

structure that's going to be temporary and it alerts

20

them to this -- you may need to do -- they may need

21

these other kinds of permits.

22

prevent the people who need to put up the tents from

23

getting those other permits right now.

24

what -- I think that's what Lieutenant English is

25

referring to.

There's nothing to

So that's

If they know that they're putting up
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1

a structure and it needs -- they need to comply with

2

the Fire Code.

3

Right now because they come in for a building

4

permit, that gets routed to Scott and he's aware

5

that somebody -- somebody's asking for a tent.

6

it's -- it's possible that if you take us out of the

7

loop, then it'll be up to the organizers to get all

8

the other permits.

9

enforcement issues that come up because of that.

So

And, you know, there may be some

10

The proposal that's before you right now that

11

just talks about County-owned facilities, parks, the

12

oversight there is that the Parks Department is

13

going to -- will be there to make sure that some of

14

the safety issues are addressed.

15

think that's what was reflected in the testimony and

16

the comments that both the Parks Department and our

17

department made on Molokai the last time this was

18

heard.

19

all fairly comfortable with County-owned

20

facilities.

21

assure that the Fire Department's concerns are

22

addressed and the Parks Department will, you know,

23

be addressing any concerns they have as well.

24

So with that, I think you just have to

25

understand that what -- as the Department of Health

And that's why I

That's why I -- I think we're all -- we were

You know, the County will be there to
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1

official mentioned, if someone's going to serve food

2

in a temporary tent, they still need the temporary

3

permit from them anyway.

4

is not familiar with the need for that kind of

5

permit, you know, may put up a tent, not -- without

6

a building permit and then, you know, start serving

7

food, and then -- then it becomes an enforcement

8

issue.

9
10

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

It's just that someone who

Member Kane?
So currently when you get -- go to

11

apply for a building permit for what we're asking

12

for the exemption consideration, Public Works serves

13

as the lead agency in sending out to the other

14

agencies this request and that's -- that's the

15

that's what's initiated.

16

initiator of making sure that there's compliancy?

You folks are the

Help me understand that, Mr. Agaran, because

17
18

what you're saying is now if we exempt, then they no

19

longer have to come to you and so now --

20

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

For -- for the -- let me say this

21

then.

22

-- are in this business, they know what kind of

23

permits they need for the type of operation they're

24

going to have.

25

need to go to the Department of Health and get a

For the most part people that have been doing

So for those people, they know they
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1

permit to serve food.

They know that they need to

2

comply with the Fire Code and that the tents have to

3

be certified as fire retardant or whatever other

4

requirements the Fire Code has.

5

to go and get a liquor license.

They know they need

6

Really, the additional thing that the

7

building code requires is, you know, we -- we -- we

8

have standards, and then we also serve sort of as a

9

routing agency more than the lead agency and we

10

if somebody comes to us, then it gets routed to the

11

other agencies.

12

they may know, they may not know whether they're in

13

the SMA area.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And it's possible that, you know,

I have concerns, Mr. Chair, and the

15

concern is I hear what Mr. Agaran is saying with

16

respects to those people who know, but the laws

17

are meant to be for everybody, whether you know or

18

don't know, and the law is there so that if you

19

don't know, then you have something to follow so you

20

know.

21

And -- and so if we provide the exemption and

22

then you have the new 501C3 nonprofit group that

23

wants to do a fund -- fund-raiser as described very

24

accurately by Member Mateo who is a new group coming

25

forward, and new groups evolve and some groups die,
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1

you know, I mean, they -- they dissolve, we can't

2

assume that now that because they have an exemption,

3

we can't assume that they know where to go and do it

4

right.

5

And so to me, it seems that we just got to

6

make sure that if we're going to create an

7

exemption, we got to cover the -- we got to cover

8

the -- the holes now that are going to be created

9

because now we remove our routing agency whether to

10

lead or a routing agency to make sure that these

11

people know where to go, somewhere in the code or

12

somewhere in the rules where they know what they got

13

to get in order to be able to have these temporary

14

structures.

15

And I'm -- I'm speaking if we move forward

16

with it and not the amended part where we're getting

17

additional discussion but the -- the original bill,

18

if we're going to take away that part, we want to

19

make sure that we cover the part that's being -- you

20

know, the -- the additional component of -- of this

21

process.

22

So I don't know how we can do that, you

23

know.

I mean, obviously we want to make sure that

24

health and safety including from the -- from the

25

Health Department.

I know, you know, Mr. Miyabara
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1

left already, I think.

But even that sometimes

2

people no realize.

3

everybody can be treated the same way and know how

4

to do it.

So that's why we have rules so

So anyway, I have my concern and I -- I don't

5

6

know how we can address that and maybe

you know,

7

I -- I look forward to continuing this discussion in

8

figuring how we can close up any holes that may be

9

created by allowing an exemption to go through.

And

10

I think the -- I think the request is -- is a good

11

one to -- for us to consider, you know, the

12

exemptions, but we need to make sure we do it right.

13
14

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Kane.

Member

Tavares?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, thank you.

This is -- my

16

question is, how do people know that they need to go

17

to the Public Works Department to get a tent permit,

18

people who haven't been doing it, your new company

19

or new, whatever, how do you find that out?

20

that's -- that's a rhetorical question.

21

need an answer for that.

22

I mean,

I don't

The point is that sometime, someplace

23

somebody finds out where they have to go.

24

they go to me is immaterial as long as I think what

25

we're responsible for is the health and safety of
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1

the people who are going to be underneath this tent

2

or near the tenth enjoying the activity.

3

And we'll get into the discussion later, but,

4

you know, there is a point where if -- if you just

5

have a blank slate and you say, okay, I'm here, you

6

know, what if I go to Australia and I want to put on

7

a county fair and I know what our rules are here,

8

but I say, oh, you know, I'll just put this up here,

9

and then somebody's going to come over and say,

10

well, you need a permit because they're seeing it

11

going on.

12

But my point is that people will learn where

13

it is they have to go and certain procedures,

14

notices, and all that will happen.

15

Parks Department, like I go for a permit to have a

16

function at the Velma santos center and I fill out

17

all the permit thing, when I take it in they say,

18

you know what, we can't give you a permit because

19

you're going to serve food and you need a Department

20

of Health temporary thing.

21

that, they're not going to issue me the permit until

22

I bring in the health permit.

23

I mean, in the

So they inform you of

So, you know, it could be the same kind of

24

thing with whoever the agency is.

Let's look at

25

streamlining the process so that we're not
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1

inconveniencing anybody in our community.

2

and I think we can work that, we can make that work.

3

And we already heard the Department of Health person

4

said that they don't care about the tent part, they

5

care about the food part.

6

have food, they have to submit the drawings anyway.

7

Fire Department already has it in their code for

8

temporary structures.

9

And

And if they're going to

So let's look at a -- a way that we can kind

10

of bring these things together to make it easier for

11

folks to do things in our County.

12

nonprofits have been just frustrated to heck all

13

these years.

14

carryon activities on private property.

15

have to go through the -- the tent process too.

16

I know the

I mean, also there's nonprofits that
So they

I mean, there's ones that do it annually.

I

17

mean, Maui Academy of Performing Arts, annual thing,

18

has tents, and it's on private property.

19

understand the Molokai situation or -- or any of

20

those other situations where there's annual events.

21

I mean, we almost didn't have the Heart walk this

22

year because they had to get an SMA permit to put up

23

a temporary tent that was up for like three hours.

24
25

I

So, you know, there -- there's got to be a
way that we can serve the public and insure that the
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1

public safety is -- is, you know, at the front of

2

our concern as -- as a legislative body.

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Tavares.

Thank you.

Member

4

Pontanilla, do you have any comments or questions

5

for the Fire Department?

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, thank you.

I just wanted

7

to find out from the Department as far as, you know,

8

you mentioned utilizing County facilities for events

9

being done for nonprofits.

For instance, when we do

10

the Maui County Fair, what -- what is the process in

11

regards to the permitting area?

12

to go through an extensive permitting requirement.

13

Can you expound on that?

I

I know we need

And the reason why I ask is that the Maui

14
15

county Fairs run more than 72 hours, and -- and it's

16

being prepared ahead of time and the takedown time

17

is probably two or three days.

18

it, it's probably about a week and a half.

19

MR. ENGLISH:

Okay.

So when you look at

Right -- right now the County Fair,

20

they have like a mass building permit to cover all

21

the tents, food booths, the entertainment hale, the

22

tent hales, all those tents are covering the one.

23

When the food groups come in and they start

24

extending their food booths, they come in all on

25

separate permits to extend the food booths,
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1

individual.

2

said, it's one building permit that covers all the

3

structures that goes up on the -- in that area, the

4

complex.

5
6

So as far as the County Fair, like I

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Similarly to like, say, a

Mercedes Golf Tournament event?

7

MR. ENGLISH:

On the Mercedes Golf Tournament

8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9

MR. ENGLISH:

On private property.

On private property.

We have like one

10

building permit for each TMK.

11

Mercedes opening, I think where the tents are set up

12

it goes through various properties.

13

permit for each TMK that the tents are going on.

14
15

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Because unlike the

So we have one

So it's not the total event

then one permit.
MR. ENGLISH:

No, it's not one permit.

It's one permit

17

for each -- each tax map key number.

18

key number might have only one tent and one might

19

have four tents.

20

tax map key.

21

So one tax map

So we cover one permit for each

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

That -- that -- it seems

22

like there's an inconsistent -- inconsistency in

23

regards to events, you know, you have one event

24

that's being held on private property and another

25

event that's being held in the County property, but
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1

the process for private -- events on private

2

property you go by tax map key.

3

MR. ENGLISH:

I think it's set up that way, but when they

4

do the building permit process it's -- it's based on

5

the tax map key.

6

tax map key, it -- it generates a new permit number.

So once you go through a different

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

B

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Pontanilla.
Any other questions for the Fire Department?

9

10

Okay.

Okay.

Seeing none, thank you, Lieutenant English.

11

Next to give their input on this matter, the

12

Chair would like to call upon Mr. Yoshida from the

13

Planning Department.

14

ask Mr. Yoshida especially if he could expound on

15

how the permit process works for temporary tents in

16

an SMA zone as well.

17

MR. YOSHIDA:

Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of the

1B

Committee.

19

Department.

20

And the Chair would like to

Clayton Yoshida with the Planning

Yes, as Mr. Agaran had mentioned, our

21

department is one of the reviewing agencies for

22

building permits.

23

reviews, our Zoning Division reviews building

24

permits, it checks for consistency with community

25

plan and general plan setbacks and SMA and flood

with respect -- and when it
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zone.

2

with respect to SMA permits, the Maui and

3

Molokai Planning commissions' rules basically have

4

exempted temporary structures.

5

as nonstructure improvements for special events not

6

exceeding 14 consecutive days such as tents and

7

booths.

8

and their event was less than 14 consecutive days,

9

they could be exempted from having to obtain an SMA

10

permit.

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

12

So if someone came in for a building permit

Okay.

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

MR. YOSHIDA:

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

17
18

MR. YOSHIDA:

Okay.

Not Lanai.

Lanai was the one

Lanai hasn't changed their rules, but their

special management area is much smaller.

20

MR. YOSHIDA:

Uh-huh.

You're talking Manele and where the -- Club

Lanai --

22

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

23

MR. YOSHIDA:

25

You said for Molokai only?

that doesn't have this.

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

24

Questions?

For Maui -- the islands of Maui and Molokai.

19

21

Thank you, Mr. Yoshida.

Member Tavares?

13

16

They've listed them

Oh, okay.

that area that -- and those are the most

used areas in the SMA.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Was this a recent change?
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MR. YOSHIDA:

This was probably -- for Maui it probably

2

was in 1997 because we were inundated

3

1989 we used to process a -- over 300 SMA minor

4

permits

5

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

6

MR. YOSHIDA:

we -- in

Uh-huh.

for -- a lot of them for these temporary

7

structures because our golf courses, a lot of the

8

golf courses and hotels are located in a special

9

management area.

Every time, say, the Kapalua Bay

10

Hotel wanted to put up a special events tents for

11

the 7-Up Bottlers --

12

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

13

MR. YOSHIDA:

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

MR. YOSHIDA:

Uh-huh.

-- they had to get an SMA permit.
Uh-huh.

Whenever they had a tournament, say at

16

Kaanapali, the Seniors Tournament or Whatever, and

17

they wanted to put up special tents, they had to get

18

an SMA permit.

19
20
21

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

How long does it take to get this

exemption, is it ministerial?
MR. YOSHIDA:

Provided that they provide -- well, that all

22

the information is there, we hope, say, within a

23

two-week period.

24

streamlining --

25

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

We're trying to look at

Uh-huh.
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MR. YOSHIDA:

-- like you say, these processes if it's,

2

say, a repeat event, they're doing the same event,

3

say, Aloha Week on Molokai or something like that.

4

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

5

MR. YOSHIDA:

Uh-huh.

We're trying to -- and they're putting up

6

the same amount of tents, you know, we're -- we're

7

trying to say that it's

8
9

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

it can be exempted.

So may I

may I inquire as to what

are the requirements, what needs to be submitted

10

with this SMA application?

11

application for this?

12
13

MR. YOSHIDA:

Is there a special

It's that SMA assessment application that we

were talking about in terms of the budget, the --

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

MR. YOSHIDA:

Oh, okay.

-- review where they go -- they submit a

16

plot plan showing, you know, where the structures

17

will be on the property and they go through the

18

criteria and the like.

19

the length of that application.

20
21
22

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

We've also kind of shortened

So is this application specifically

for temporary structures?
MR. YOSHIDA:

This application is for any type of action,

23

proposed action within the special management area,

24

you know, whether somebody wants to put up a

25
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VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

2

MR. YOSHIDA:

3

4

Uh-huh.

-- at -- at their house in Kihei or for

temporary tents or structures.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

So if the State regatta for canoe

5

paddling wants to have their thing at, you know,

6

Hanakao'o Beach Park, they need to get an SMA, this

7

SMA assessment?

8

MR. YOSHIDA:

9

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

10

Yes.

MR. YOSHIDA:

Okay.

Thank you.

We -- we also are trying to work with the

11

Parks Department in terms of trying to streamline

12

the process for events held at County parks.

13

we're -- they were trying to use Molokai as a pilot

14

area.

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

Okay.

Again,

Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Yoshida and Member

Tavares.
Committee Members, any other questions for

18
19

the Planning Department?

20

Mr. Yoshida.

Seeing none, thank you,

21

Next to give their insight on this matter,

22

the Chair would like to call upon Mr. Wayne Pagan

23

from the Liquor Department.

24
25

MR. PAGAN:

Good morning, Mr. Chair, Council Members, and

everyone else in the -- in the audience.
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1

Wayne Pagan.

I'm the Deputy Director of the

2

Department of Liquor Control.
As far as the Liquor Department is concerned,

3

4

when a liquor licensee wants to erect tents or

5

similar type of structures and come in for a permit,

6

we require them to obtain approval from Public Works

7

and the Fire Department to insure that those

8

structures are safe.

9

it.

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Pagan.

committee Members, any questions for

11

12

Okay.

And basically, that's about

Mr. Pagan?

Okay.

seeing none, thank you.

And we have next from the Parks Department,

13

14

I'd like to call upon Mr. Buck, a regular visitor to

15

our chambers of lade.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

MR. BUCK:

18

Huh?

Just carve your initials.

Just carve my initials.

Good morning, good morning, Committee Chair

19

and Committee Members.

20

for Department of Parks and Recreation.

21

John Buck, Deputy Director

Maybe what I should do and I probably can

22

clarify some of the questions, I think, Councilman

23

Kane had in regards to some controls just go through

24

our permitting process be it type five which is

25

commercial or a nonprofit, and I think you -- you
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1

would kind of maybe get a better understanding that

2

there are some controls.

3

The Parks Department's charge before they

4

approve any event that takes place in our facilities

5

be it -- and we'll talk about special events, either

6

it be a type four, nonprofit, or type five,

7

commercial, we have very little requirements.

8

main job as the Department of Parks and Recreation

9

before either myself as the Deputy or the Director

Our

10

sign off on a permit, our main job is to insure that

11

all requirements for all departments have been

12

fulfilled.

13

So if the -- and we would go through the

14

applicant, we would tell them, okay, you're going to

15

have an impact on traffic, you will need to go see

16

the Police Department, you're putting up a structure

17

of some kind, for example, for the tent, you need to

18

go see the Fire Department.

19

they go to the Fire Department which says you need

20

to have a site plan, you're going to have to show

21

if you're going to put up a big tent, you

22

need to verify that it's flame retardant, you need

23

to show your (inaudible) splice, how wide, you need

24

to show an evacuation plan and -- and fire in case

25

of emergency.

We go as far as when
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If they're going to be serving food, then

2

they're informed that they must go see the Health

3

Department.

4

we're going to ask them to go see the Police

5

Department for -- either for security, traffic or if

6

they need or don't need.

7

they're putting up temporary structures, we will

8

require them to go see the building permit.

9

If there are a lot of people there,

And because we know that

At anytime none of these departments have

10

okayed it, then they will not get a

11

issued by us to have the event.

12

they go get their building permit and -- and Public

13

Works sets off that they got to go to the different

14

departments for the okay or to our department, but

15

there are some controls.

16

and Recreation Department, our main primary duty or

17

requirement is to be sure that all requirements of

18

all the other departments are made.

19

a permit

So be it either

And our job as the Parks

That being said, we are basically in kind of

20

support of what -- this proposed bill before us

21

because it has been a real lately, especially with

22

some of the problems we've had with the nonprofits

23

getting permits.

24

they're

25

permit for a temporary structure.

It's a very tedious project if

if we require them to get a building
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Councilmember Mateo had talked about the

1

2

possibility of doing a pilot project for Molokai.

3

We -- after we had conversations with Council

4

Mateo's office, we tried to start doing a pilot

5

project.

6

required for us to fill for the SMA and everything

7

else got so horrendous that we had dropped doing

8

that pilot project.

The paperwork required, though, what was

9

And I have to apologize, but it was just

10

taking up too much staff time because there was

11

something like eight pages for each park, and then

12

we had to identify which was all the annual events.

13

It just got to be too much for one person doing

14

that.

15

one that's kind of doing it because it was on

16

special events.

Our Program Planner was -- was basically the

There are some concerns about the Fire

17
18

Department.

I've worked with many of the special

19

events over the years, with the County Fair and

20

everything else, and I

21

kind of really aware what the Fire Department

22

concerns is.

23

an

24

to be sure that the health and safety of the

25

participants or the organizers are taken into

and I closely -- and we're

The Department's intent is not to have

an unsafe event.

Our -- our -- our intent is
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account.

2

If all the requirements lately for a

3

nonprofit or even a -- a commercial entity to get a

4

building permit -- to get a permit from our

5

department, they've been able to basically comply

6

with most of the departments, including the building

7

permit.

8

hardest for them to complete because on -- in some

9

cases they are required to get SMAs.

That has been the most -- that's been the

I do know that there was an exemption for

10

11

Molokai, but unfortunately, for us to do the last

12

event, the member of the Planning Commission over

13

there was actually telling us that we had to get an

14

SMA.

15

having.

16

with Planning.

17

we've been having.

18

So that's one of the problems that we were
Hopefully, that's been straightened out
But that's some of the problems

Our intent is not to bypass the safety

19

requirements as far as tenting.

The Fire Department

20

is still going to review the tents as far as fire

21

retardations, and if they see something wrong

22

they'll make the comments, they won't sign off, and

23

then we won't sign off on the permit.

24

But because we have a lot of nonprofits who

25

are volunteers and it does sometimes take a lot of
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1

their time, they're volunteering to do a fund-raiser

2

or an educational event, to inform the public that

3

will be beneficial to both the county and the

4

nonprofit, you know, it's getting to the point where

5

they're getting really frustrated in the permit.

6

And I understand the requirements, but sometimes

7

really it's been a lot of work where they'll have a

8

four-hour event and they got to come in early in the

9

morning, put up the tent after they get the building

10

permit.

11

I -- I -- again, I intend to try to

12

streamline the process if there's an easier way to

13

go through the whole process without breaking any

14

laws, but we're in support of the proposal in front

15

of you from Councilman Mateo.

16
17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Buck.

Any questions for Mr. Buck at this time,

18

committee Members?

19

Mr. Buck.

20
21
22

Seeing none, thank you,

And at this time the Chair would like to ask
for comments from Public Works, Mr. Coloma-Agaran.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I think in our

23

response of May 25th, we set out what the process is

24

right now as far as the routing of building permits.

25

I think to -- just to -- just as background for the
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1

Members, you should note that the Uniform Building

2

Code as published has no exemption for tents from

3

the building permit process.

4

is something that was crafted by the County as a

5

policy.

6

whether you believe that tents that are erected

7

temporarily on County property should be exempt or

8

an exemption that extends beyond County property.

9

The existing exemption

So you can decide as a policy matter

Just that the notion is really that the

10

concern that as far as the building code is for

11

tents is that -- is one for safety, that those tents

12

are erected properly so that they don't become a

13

flying hazard to people and cause damage to

14

property.

15

change would be just to add a line saying temporary

16

tents or other coverings that are erected on

17

County-owned property as being the additional

18

exemption rather than the rest of the language about

19

nonprofits.

20

The language that we suggested as a

Our -- our comment is really that, as

21

Mr. Buck noted, although the new exemption will

22

eliminate the need to obtain a building permit,

23

those other regulations will still exist, the SMA,

24

the Fire Code, and we believe that Parks' personnel

25

will provide the safety oversight that's needed on
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county property for those types of events.

2

With that, I suppose if you are looking at an

3

exemption that extends beyond, you will be basically

4

looking at more of an enforcement issue for the

5

other agencies other than our agency.

6

building permit required, if there is a complaint

7

that comes in about a tent being erected on private

8

property without the proper permits, we will

9

probably refer those complaints to the other

If there's no

10

agencies, Fire, Health, Liquor, and that's the way

11

it would work.

12
13
14

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Questions for Mr. Coloma-Agaran?

Member

Tavares?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah.

Mr. Coloma-Agaran, in the

16

present system is an applicant able to fill out a

17

permit via the internet on-line or must they

18

physically appear at your department?

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

They need to come because I don't

believe our forms are on -- on-line.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Is your department working toward

that, having those kind of forms on-line?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I think that's our intent, but we

haven't done it yet.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

So I guess that's kind of the
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1

stuff we're hearing too is that it -- it's

2

time-consuming for, you know, people who are in the

3

business of doing it especially to take time out and

4

-- and fill out, you know, permits or come over.

5

Okay.

Thank you.

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

Thank you, Members Tavares.

Okay.

I yield, Chair.
Thank you.

Member pontanilla, do

you have any questions for the Department?

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

12

Member Kane?

Okay.

We'll

No.
we'll be coming back to the

Director later on for additional questions.
At this time continuing, I guess, the last

13

14

leg of our, I guess, explanation for, I guess, how

15

each department is involved in the permit process

16

here, we have Corporation Counsel.

17

could have your comments, especially on the

18

liability questions that have been previously

19

submitted to your office as it relates to this

20

matter.

21

MS. YOUNG:

Ms. Young, if we

Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.

22

With regards to liability, what we did was we

23

analyzed it for the two different proposed exemption

24

classes, one being the nonprofit organizations and

25

one being for tents erected in our County -- on
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County property.
For nonprofit organizations, you know, that's

3

basically a policy issue, I believe, that

4

liability-wise especially if for tents erected on

5

private property by nonprofits, you know, potential

6

liability is small, our -- you know, the County's

7

involvement in that would be the -- the exemption.

8

And that's basically, you know, something that

9

courts generally tend to look at as -- as a

10

discretionary decision, as a policy decision.

11

therefore, in most instances, the County is not

12

liable merely for making that type of policy

13

decision while taking into account all of the

14

different safety and other factors involved.

15
16

And

With regards to exempting temporary tents in
in County facilities, the analysis is a little

17

different because it is taking place on our park

18

on -- on -- in our -- on our property.

19

courts have generally said that the County has to

20

exercise reasonable care in maintaining our own

21

facilities, which would at a minimum, I would think,

22

in a park mean that if there is an open and obvious

23

danger, if there's a tent that's -- that's obviously

24

not secured, then we would have an obligation to go

25

and -- and correct that situation or -- or insure

And so
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that that's -- that gets corrected.

2

And so that would be my only comment is that

3

it does place a responsibility on the County to

4

exercise reasonable care in maintaining -- you know,

5

in maintaining some semblance of safety.

6

insurers of safety, but we would have to exercise

7

reasonable care in -- in the supervision of the use

8

of our facilities.

9
10

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

We're not

Committee Members, any

questions for the corporation Counsel at this time?
Seeing none, okay, at this time we have our

11
12

two testifiers.

13

break, however, I know you've been waiting a while.

14

I'd like to call upon our testifiers who did sign up

15

before the 9:15, I guess, deadline that I had set.

16

So at this time I'd like to call upon first Herb

17

Yuen to please take the stand, and Mr. Yuen will be

18

followed by John Anderson.

19

state your name and any organization that you

20

represent.

And if you could please

Yes, sir, right.

••• BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY •••

21

22

The Chair would like to take a

MR. YUEN:

Mr. Chairman, Committee Members, my name is

23

Herb Yuen.

I'm from the company called Envisions

24

Entertainment & Productions, Inc.

25

on Maui, and our primary source of business is the

We're based here
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1

corporate incentive and high-end wedding market for

2

which we produce up-scale parties.

3

these parties are at these world class resorts, as

4

well as private venues around the island.

5

And most of

Many of our outdoor evening events require

6

the use of tents either by design or it is because

7

of the inclement weather.

8

erected one event, one night to accommodate guest

9

seating, food preparations, food stations, bands,

Typically, our tents are

10

stages, carnival games, artisans and the like.

11

They're usually set up in the morning for smaller

12

productions, and on occasions maybe it would take

13

one to two days, perhaps even four days, prior to

14

the event for a larger -- to allow for these major

15

elaborate setups such as flooring, lighting,

16

staging, decor, et cetera.

17

These tents are typically taken down by the

18

following day after the event.

19

tents and the quantity of the tents vary, of course,

20

by event, some requiring single tents such as a ten

21

by ten, others requiring multiple tents totaling

22

anywhere between 3,000 to 15,000 square feet.

23

The size of these

My business partner Wayne Hikiji has been

24

working intently trying to request an amendment to

25

the -- the bill that is stated.

Mr. Hikiji is not
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1

here, but I present to you in this particular

2

proposed bill in the paragraph work exempt from

3

permit stated in 106.2, work exempt from permit, a

4

building permit shall not be required for the

5

following, and, quote, temporary tents and other

6

coverings erected for events that are subject to the

7

jurisdiction of the Department of the Liquor Control

8

provide that such tents and other coverings shall be

9

removed within 96 hours after the time of

10

installation, as noted on the applicable liquor

11

permit application.

12

Now the proposed exemption will eliminate the

13

need for building permits for temporary tents and

14

other covering erected for no more than 96 hours for

15

any event under the jurisdiction of the county of

16

Maui, Department of Liquor Control.

17

MR. SALDANA:

18

MR. YUEN:

Three minutes.

And this is what we'd like to present to you

19

with that, to amend -- or the work exempt for the

20

permit to amend that.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

testifier?

Seeing none, thank you.

Next to testify, we have Mr. John Anderson.

24
25

Thank you, Mr. Yuen.

committee Members, any questions for the

22
23

Okay.

Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON:

Good morning.

My name is John Anderson.
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1

I'm the Associate Director of catering and

2

Conference Service at the Ritz Carlton-Kapalua.

3

I don't know what much more I can add to what

4

Mr. Yuen talked about other than to kind of just

5

detail for you what the process is that we need to

6

go through to do events at an area within our

7

confines in Kapalua called the Kapalua Ball Field,

8

and it was rooted earlier in terms of what the

9

process times take.

But for us to go from the

10

beginning to the end in terms of going through the

11

five varying agencies that we need to go through, it

12

can take anywhere from four to six weeks to get the

13

permitting process completely done.

14

and onerous task to try to go through that between

15

the amount of man hours that's involved and the

16

departments that we need to be in contact with.

17

we don't object to the process in

18

it's just the amount of time that it takes us to go

19

through it.

20

trying to do this.

And it's a huge

And

in a sense,

It's just a huge burden in terms of

21

As Mr. Yuen indicated too, we do many large

22

events and much of what we try to do down there is

23

based on anywhere from 400 to 1,000 people.

24

understand the safety and needs of the -- of our

25

guests in terms of what we need to provide.
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1

just a incredible amount of time to go through it in

2

terms of going through this and dealing with the

3

different government departments.

4

And as we mentioned, there are five, there's

5

Planning, there's Building, there's Fire, there's

6

Liquor, and there's County Health.

7

those is a different process to go through and a

8

different set of requirements that they ask from us.

9

And frankly, at this point it's just -- and

And each one of

10

including in getting the SMA, it's just a long, long

11

drawn out process.

12

And part of the biggest issue is that when

13

you're dealing with corporations in terms of them

14

wanting to put on these events, they don't have

15

their planning process set two months out.

16

don't have their structure.

17

out how they want to place things.

18

we need a diagram and the diagram really can't

19

change.

20

They

They haven't figured
They -- because

They don't think that far out.
The way the nature of our business is, is

21

ends up becoming much more shorter term.

They don't

22

think out on a recurring annual event.

23

like it's a Taste of Lahaina, it's the same thing

24

that's done every year, it's the same layout that's

25

done every year.

So it's not

Each time they do something is a
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totally new event.

2

So it's much -- the structure for us to go

3

through this to force them in essence to provide us

4

the information two months out is huge.

5

they just don't think that far out in terms of being

6

able to plan this.

7

and go through this and then basically go through to

8

each government agency that's involved to try to do

9

it is huge.

They--

And to have everything in place

And what we're just asking for here is

10

that if we had some leeway in terms of this and had

11

as Mr. Yuen has presented a 96-hour exemption from

12

the completion.
We still want to have the different

13

14

government processes involved because we understand

15

how important it is --

16

MR. SALDANA:

17

MR. ANDERSON:

Three minutes.
for Fire to be involved in the safety

18

because the safety of our guests is paramount, no

19

different than it is for Lieutenant English.

20

still want to go through it.

21

to shorten it considerably for us, and whether that

22

involves having an exemption but still go through

23

Fire, still go through Liquor, because we still have

24

to go through Liquor each time, that's a given, so

25

that's basically all we're asking here is a process

So we

We just need a means
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1

to shorten it up, give us a little bit more time to

2

help to avoid these types of issues that have come

3

up constantly.

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

testifier?

9

Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Anderson.

••• END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY •••

7

8

Thank you, Mr. Anderson.

Committee Members, questions for the

5
6

Okay.

Thank you.

CHAIR MOLINA:

At this time, the Chair before we continue

further deliberations on this item, it's time for

10

our mid-morning break.

11

recess until 10:50.

12

RECESS:

13

RECONVENE:

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

So the Chair will call for a

(Gavel.)

10:38 a.m.
10:52 a.m.
(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

15

Committee meeting for July 8th is now back in

16

session.

Thank you very much for the break,

17

Members.

The Chair welcomes to our proceedings

18

today Committee Member Hokama.

19

We'll continue now with our line of

20

questioning for the Public Works Department

21

regarding Item 32, the work exempt permit issue.

22

At this time, Members, do you have any additional

23

questions for Mr. Agaran?

24

testimony from our public as it relates to the

25

business sector.

We did hear some
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1

Are there any questions or comments -- well,

2

let me ask, Mr. Coloma-Agaran, if you'd like to make

3

some comments in addition to what you've already

4

stated this morning.

5

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Yes, just generally.

Again, this is a

6

policy decision for you as we noted before.

The

7

uniform Building Code that was published had no

8

exemptions for tents.

9

created an exemption for family parties, so there

The County already has

10

are limited exemptions already.

So you have -- it's

11

your policy that you can set out in the ordinance.
Just one comment on the concerns about the

12
13

number

on the amount of time it'll take to

14

process.

I -- I don't think you want to overly

15

promise what -- what the results of this legislation

16

will do for the applicants.

17

permit requirements doesn't exempt them from the

18

special management area, it will not exempt them

19

from the Fire Department's requirements.

20

they're serving food, as the person from the DOH

21

testified, you still will need the food permit as

22

well.

23

through the building permit process saves them that

24

-- that process.

25

Taking out the building

And if

But, you know, taking them out of going

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director.
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Mr. Hokama, questions for the Director?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you, Chairman.

I've been

listening to the discussion and testimony.
To be frank, Mr. Director, I don't support

4
5

exemptions.

I think what the question is -- needs

6

to be, we have a policy, why isn't the departments

7

taking the concerns or the comments that the process

8

is too slow and not coming up with a revised way of

9

getting the work done?

Why isn't the Department of

10

Management sitting down with your department, Fire,

11

Parks, Planning and coming up with a process that

12

can address shortening the review and approval time?
I think that's the question that we would

13

14

like to hear from the Administration, Chairman.

15

policy has been made, is enacted, it exist.

16

a administrative problem, not a policy problem, not

17

when you're allowing public to utilize facilities.

18

And ignorance doesn't hold any water for me to the

19

law.

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

23

24
25

This is

Okay.

Okay.

So that's the question I pose.
Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

Mr. Coloma-Agaran, any response?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I think generally that's a good

that's a good question.

However, each of the
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1

departments, you know, has their own

2

responsibilities of what they're looking at in terms

3

of the different permits that they process.

4

For example, for the SMA, the Planning

5

Department does manage their own people and the

6

kinds of information they request from the

7

applicants.

8

right now they've gotten the time down to two weeks

9

to review the assessment.

I -- I think Mr. Yoshida noted that

And so they're -- and it

10

may not seem like improvement to a lot of people,

11

but that is an improvement over what -- what it's

12

been in the past.

13

For the most part, I would say that the Fire

14

Department does turn around their reviews fairly

15

quickly.

16

deal with the Fire Department, they're always within

17

the amount of time that we give them, whether it's

18

subdivisions or building permits.

19

I mean, you know, all the processes we

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Let -- let me ask you this

20

question, Mr. Director, then please.

21

erection of the temporary structure, the tent, is

22

there an inspector, monitors or insurers erection is

23

done properly?

24
25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

During the

Generally only on a time-available

basis that maybe there'll be a spot check.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So you -- the assumption is back on

2

the applicant to properly erect or construct that

3

structure.

4

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

7

That's right.
There is no sign-offs before they

can utilize the structure.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

No, there's no final inspection

8

approval or certificate of occupancy for a temporary

9

structure.

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So currently now if a structure

11

falls on the public, what is our defense for

12

allowing that structure?

13
14
15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Maybe, Corporation Counsel, do you want to

respond to that question?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Because I can tell you, Corporation

16

-- I seen the small tents, I seen those $10,000

17

tents that Manele Bay blow away.

18

MS. YOUNG:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

What the Department is

19

-- of Public Works is doing now is -- is reviewing

20

the plans.

21

their specifications or their criteria, then they're

22

allowed to erect their tents as -- as shown -- as

23

shown on their -- on their application.

24
25

And -- and if the plans are -- meet

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I -- I just ask because, again, for

permanent structures we do go through an inspection
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process prior to allowing the use of the structure.
okay.

2
3

4
5

6

Thank you, Chairman, and thank you,

Mr. Director.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Hokama.

Questions, Member Tavares?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Mr. Chairman, could we ask the Fire

7

Department, do they do an inspection prior to the

8

occupation or the use of that tent for the public?

9
10

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Member Tavares, we'll call the Fire

Department up.
MR. ENGLISH:

Lieutenant English?

To answer that on the larger events, we do

12

have inspectors go out.

13

events, we do have the corporations pay like a

14

inspection fee for fire inspectors to be there to

15

watch over the

16

that's going on.

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

On some of the private

the banquet or whatever function

Do you have a square footage type of

18

minimum that kicks in the inspection or the number

19

of people who will be attending the event, what is

20

your trigger for when you say --

21
22

MR. ENGLISH:

For our Fire code, it's -- and it cannot be

over 400 square feet, then it --

23

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

24

MR. ENGLISH:

25

Four hundred square feet.

-- then it has to comply with Article 32.

And then like I said, that -- that article covered
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1

like amount of exits required for the amount of

2

people in there --

3

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

4

MR. ENGLISH:

5

6

Uh-huh.

-- amount of extinguishers, when it has to

be flame retardant and all of that.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Has our Hawaii code changed since the

7

last time I dealt with the County Fair where you

8

have to mark exits even though it was totally open,

9

you still have to mark exits even though it's

10

totally open?

11

MR. ENGLISH:

12

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

13

right?

14

information.

15

We still have to mark a general exit way.

Okay.

This is the mainland fire code,
Thank you.

Thank you for that

You know, Mr. Chair, it seems to me that the

16

Fire Department has through their code a whole lot

17

more requirements and kind of know what they're

18

doing, I mean, to hear that there's even a square

19

footage requirement before something triggers an

20

inspection or something like that.

21

And I, you know, I agree with Mr. Hokama that

22

this is -- this kind of discussion that we're doing

23

here, to me this is micromanaging.

24

that the Administration somehow should get together.

25

And I don't know if Mr. Coloma-Agaran or maybe it's

It should be
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1

the Fire Department could take it -- take it -- take

2

the initiative, perhaps, to form a little group to

3

try and see what can be worked out regarding these

4

this permit process.

5

The permit process to me is horrendous.

6

You're going to use something for one day or one

7

night and it takes four to six weeks to process that

8

permit?

9

represent the constituency out there.

That's just unacceptable.

that's who we represent.

You know, we
I mean,

And I have to

10

that's

11

agree, I mean, I have to feel sorry for the -- the

12

constituents who have called me, both the nonprofits

13

and the professional event promoters.
Is the alternative going to be in our county

14
15

that no tents are allowed anywhere for anything?

16

It's got to be a permanent structure.

17

we want to do?

18

Besides impacting the economy, how will it impact

19

the comfort and -- the comfort of the people who are

20

going there?

Why do we put up the tents in the

21

first place?

It's for the weather, either it's

22

inclement -- you know, whether it's raining or

23

there's too much sun.

24

things.

25

Is that what

How will that impact our economy?

So we've got to have these

So let's figure out a way to speed up the
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1

process, to simplify the process.

2

talking with the Planning Department, it's the same

3

application, what is that, that anybody goes through

4

for that SMA exemption thing whether it's an

5

activity or structure, permanent or otherwise, in an

6

SMA area.

7

I mean, in

I mean, to me that already says it.

You -- this is a different kind of animal and

8

we need to treat these temporary tents in a

9

different manner.

First and foremost is the

10

public's safety.

11

requirements about how the tents are anchored?

12

there a thing that says your -- your spike has to be

13

at a 45-degree angle into the ground of a certain

14

diameter, of a certain depth, does the Building

15

Department have those kind of requirements, does the

16

Fire Department have those kind of requirements?

17

That's it.

I mean, are there
Is

You know, so it's kind of like a -- a little

18

bit, I guess, disconcerting that

that something

19

like this is not -- we don't figure out a way to do

20

it better.

21

just like we did with the -- the building permits,

22

the ______ permit or whatever, the -- the Department

23

figured out a way to speed up the process to make it

24

easier for the

25

they be public or private or nonprofit kind of

And I think if we put our heads together

for the clients out there, whether
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clients.

2

So I believe that the Administration can come
I'm not willing to -- to

3

up with something better.

4

approve this today even if we take the nonprofit

5

thing out of it.

6

property, yes, there's better oversight and I guess

7

that's what we're looking toward is oversight.

8

Parks Department has better oversight right now

9

because they will require all of these things, but

We still have -- even in County

10

that still means the person has to go from place to

11

place to get all these additional permits.
So, you know, I -- I think we should maybe,

12
13

Chair, write a letter to the -- to the

14

Administration and ask them to -- you know, we feel

15

that this is a -- is a problem that -- and

16

Mr. Mateo, thank you very much for bringing this up

17

based on what's happened on Molokai -- that if we

18

look at things like square footage and in one

19

application that will include sign-off areas for all

20

-- all -- all agencies that need to sign off on it.
I mean, thank goodness we had Department of

21

22

Health saying they don't need to see these, you

23

know.

24

will save everybody one trip and maybe three or four

25

days, I don't know.

They should have said that years ago and that

But there's -- there's --
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1

there's got to be an answer for this.

I don't think

2

we need to -- to sacrifice oversight.

We just need

3

to streamline it.
That would be my comments, Mr. Chair.

4
5

6

Thank

you.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Tavares.
Members, any other questions for the

7

8

Department or comments as it relates to this matter?

9

Member Kane?

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, just a clarification from

11

Director Coloma-Agaran.

12

transmittal to the Chair, your number four and the

13

question was sUbmitting language that would revise

14

the proposed bill, so you've underscored some

15

language and you started off with reading portions

16

of number 22.

17

In your May 25th

So I'm trying to get clarification on this

18

because it seems like that language -- and I tried

19

to understand what your comments were when you were

20

referencing this about not having to specifically

21

cite events sponsored by nonprofit organizations.

22

Can you expound on your comments with respect to

23

this?

24

Plus it just -- and I think the request is to

25

bracket out the daily and erected only between hours
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1

of 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., and -- and yet you have

2

it included in there.

3

understand what you're trying to provide to us as

4

far as revising the proposed bill.

5

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Yes.

So I'm just trying to

Mr. Agaran?

I think you have to think back

6

to the discussions that were held on Molokai.

And

7

among the discussions, really, if you're going to be

8

on county property and the exemption is going to be

9

on County property, then to us and to the Parks

10

Department it didn't matter if you were a nonprofit

11

or for-profit entity.

12

what you're exempting, which is the temporary tents.

13

And then the timing of those tents would then be

14

overseen by the Parks Department for however long

15

the event it is.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Basically, you should look at

So your language that's underscored

17

in number four is -- are you suggesting that number

18

22 simply have temporary tents or other coverings

19

that are erected on County-owned property, that's

20

it?

21

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yes, that's it.
Okay.

I -- I wanted that

23

clarification because you cited still the other

24

portion.

25

out.

I didn't know if you were bracketing that

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

I'm clear on that.
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CHAIR MOLINA:

The Chair has a couple of questions for the

2
3

Thank you, Member Kane.

well, first, of Corporation Counsel.

Again, I

4

just wanted to understand the -- if there -- there's

5

any legal problems, I -- I guess, with this current

6

proposal today where that's, you know, exempting

7

nonprofit organizations and not exempting profit

8

organizations.

9

there?

10

MS. YOUNG:

Your comments, any legal concerns

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

11

No, there are no -- there are no legal

12

problems with regards to -- I -- I think what you're

13

asking is whether that constitutes some kind of

14

unconstitutional discrimination of some sort.

15

it -- it wouldn't because this classification, as we

16

understand it, it is in order to allow for

17

nonprofits to put on activities that are primarily

18

that are primarily meant to benefit the public.

And

19

So in that instance, then it's a -- it's a

20

classification with a -- with a reasonable basis or,

21

I'm sorry, rational basis, and therefore, it would

22

not violate any constitutional provision.

23

And -- and I -- I should also note that in

24

Chapter 13.04, actually Section 13.04.030 of our

25

code, we already allow for, you know, kind of
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1

different treatment of nonprofits where we allow for

2

co-sponsorship of certain -- of certain activities

3

and parks.

4

that they need to -- that they need to meet is that

5

it's a nonprofit entity event.

And that would be one of the criteria

And if they meet that criteria as well as

6
7

certain other enumerated criteria in that section,

8

then that would allow for the county to co-sponsor

9

that activity which would allow for certain

10

benefits, for example, you know, they wouldn't have

11

to pay the park fee.

12

have established, you know, differential treatment

13

for nonprofit entities.

14

basically be a policy decision on -- on your part.

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

And so already in our code we

So, yes, that -- that would

Thank you.

And for the Director,

16

Mr. Coloma-Agaran, any recommendations for how as

17

you see it the permit process can be streamlined?

18

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I think for the last two years we've

19

been asking the other agencies to tell us if you

20

really want to see these things.

21

surprising to me today to hear the Department of

22

Health is not interested because they've said that

23

they still want to see the same things we route to

24

them.

25

So it was kind of

If some of the agencies would say that they
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1

don't want to see these, that would help.

Secondly,

2

I -- I think it'd be for the agencies that have an

3

exemption in their rules, I suppose a tent is a

4

tent.

5

know what else they're looking at in determining

6

whether something qualifies for the exemption.

I don't -- I don't understand if -- I don't

So again, it's more a question of if

7

the

8

fewer agencies it get -- it gets routed to, the

9

faster it'll be because internally our department

10

and the Fire Department usually can review these

11

types of structures fairly quickly.

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

And in general you, I guess, from

13

the Public Works side you give everybody -- well, I

14

-- I guess, I don't know whether it's formally or

15

informally, ten working days to respond and give

16

their comments to any permit request?

17

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Generally.

Okay.

And I guess I -- I was thinking

19

about -- with the State, that may have been -- be a

20

stumbling block since we have no jurisdiction or

21

control as to when they can get -- give their

22

responses.

23

saying that now that they don't really need to see

24

it, I think that might help expedite things a little

25

bit.

But upon hearing Mr. Miyabara today
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Members, any --

1

2

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

4

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

They -- they

Oh, go ahead.
-- they said they don't need to see

5

the building permit, but they did say they still

6

will require a temporary food license.

7

they won't be in the loop for the building permit,

8

but people who are erecting a tent to serve food

9

will still need to get that food license.

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

So, yes,

Members, any final

11

questions or comments for the Department?

12

seeing none --

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

16

Okay.

Chairman?

Oh, go ahead, I'm sorry, Member Mateo?
I'm sorry, Chairman, not for the

Department, thank you, but if I may just comment.

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Please do so.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you very much.

Chairman

19

Chairman, I just would like to -- you know, I

20

appreciate the discussion that has occurred.

21

department -- the various departments that

22

commented, you know, like, you know, their -- their

23

responses and their comments was really well taken

24

and I think well overdue.

25

The

But I think the whole -- the whole intent or
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1

the whole -- the reason we're here is because, one,

2

this has been a problem for a long time.

3

think when people call us and say, you know, like

4

changes need to happen.

You know, like the intent

5

was not to micromanage.

The intent was to help move

6

the process along because it's been stuck.

7

been the intent.

8
9

And I

That has

You know, the -- the call of our nonprofits
especially, you know, has been one that we all heard

10

and we all did nothing.

So the intent of this

11

process was to try to alleviate the -- the lengthy

12

processes and the burdensome, you know, requirements

13

that the county place on these individuals.

14

know, and, you know, I -- I respect Mr. Hokama's

15

feelings that he doesn't support exemptions.

16

you know what the reality is, this County does

17

provide exemptions.

You

But

18

So for me it's kind of difficult to see that

19

we're -- you know, well, what are we saying at this

20

particular point?

21

departments can all get together and streamline the

22

process?

23

he's been trying for the last two years.

24

much longer do we wait to have processes become

25

available so that the alleviation of unnecessary

Well, they wait until the

As Mr. Agaran has mentioned, you know,
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1

bureaucratic tie-ups can once and for all be there

2

to assist our nonprofits?
And this is all it was, Chairman.

3

So, you

4

know, I'm -- I'm a little disappointed, you know,

5

that, you know, some of the Members see this in a

6

different light.

7

the -- this is what we're all about, we're about

8

being able to provide this particular ordinance,

9

opening it up for discussion and let the -- let the

10

chips fall, you know, where they -- where they may.

11

But, you know, this is -- this is

But I thank everybody for their participation

12

in the discussion and helping us to come up with,

13

you know, the knowledge that we need to concentrate

14

and focus on the permit processes and the

15

difficulties and the obstacles that we are

16

continuously creating.

17

Chairman, and Members, thank you.

18
19

20

CHAIR MOLINA:
comments?

Thank you very much,

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.
Okay.

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Members, any other

Member Tavares?

Yeah, Mr. Chair, thank you.

I -- I

21

do appreciate where Mr. Mateo is coming from because

22

I've got those same calls.

23

when it comes to the County properties, if we accept

24

what Mr. Coloma-Agaran has presented by saying that

25

it's temporary tents or other coverings erected on

And -- and actually,
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1

County-owned property, you know, I could support

2

that as a -- as an interim thing.

3

But I'm not -- I'm not satisfied that that's

4

going to solve the problem because, first of all,

5

who owns the property should not be the question or

6

the concern.

7

concern whether it's public property or private

8

property.

9

The public's safety should be the

Now we know from our experience because it is

10

the County Parks Department permit process that

11

there is a whole lot of -- of oversight that would

12

not necessarily occur on private property.

13

I'm -- I'm trusting in the processes set up through

14

the Parks permit procedure that public health and

15

safety can be addressed I think more than adequately

16

on County-owned property.

17

And so

So I would not mind supporting that as long

18

as we took out the profit -- nonprofit one because I

19

think people should be treated in this case the same

20

because it's not -- it's the event and not where it

21

is or who's sponsoring it.

22

safety, whoever's attending that particular event.

23

It's the public's

And I would like very much to see us look at

24

perhaps, you know, maybe between first and second

25

reading or at first reading a square footage
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1

requirement in here so that we would not be

2

exempting the County Fair tents, for example.

3

it wouldn't be them because they're longer than 72

4

hours.

5

tents, I think we need to pay more attention to

6

that.

7

Well,

But other events that might have larger

So if we could somehow come up with some kind

8

of square foot minimum or ceiling maximum that this

9

would apply to, then I

I think I could support

10

that part of it.

11

thing is we say a lot of times that, oh, we're going

12

to do this, we'll support this, we'll pass this, and

13

then later on we'll fix something else, we'll fix

14

another part of it, and it's how many times do we

15

actually come back and fix the other part.

16

But I don't want -- you know, the

And I would hope that we still continue in

17

the line of asking the Administration to really

18

focus on speeding up the entire process for this

19

these particular ones.

20

mean that once a month the County agencies are all

21

in the same room from 8:00 to 10:00 a.m., and if you

22

got a permit you bring it in and everybody reviews

23

it right then and there.

24

whole lot.

25

You know, sometimes it might

You know, that would do a

I mean, why is it in the City and County of
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1

Honolulu you can get a building permit in a day.

I

2

don't know, maybe that's changed, but they used to

3

be able to do it in a day, a building permit, and it

4

takes us months over here.

5

level of service are we willing to give to our

6

public.

7

approved the funds for the community Service center

8

down in Kahului, that was for the convenience of our

9

-- our citizens.

So it just depends what

We built and approved and we built.

We

So, I mean, I think we are continually

10
11

looking at ways to make, you know, life a little

12

easier, certainly to streamline some of this or cut

13

some of this red tape that we keep talking about and

14

maybe we can get the tape, you know, a little less

15

red, maybe not totally white, but a little less red

16

tape.
So Mr. Chair, that's kind of where I come

17
18

from.

19

those concerns that were originally brought forth by

20

Mr. Mateo, I could support the one on County-owned

21

property like is stated in Mr. Coloma-Agaran's

22

letter to us and that there is no distinction

23

between nonprofits and profits

24

Thank you.

25

I think for -- for now to address some of

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

for profit.

Thank you very much, Member Tavares.
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90

Any other comments before the Chair makes his
recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Member Kane?
Thank you, Chair.

Currently the

4

language in number 22 is inclusive of private family

5

parties, camping or other -- or other coverings for

6

other uses provided that the temporary tents shall

7

be removed within 72 hours.

8

of what Mr. Agaran has provided in his May 25th, but

9

not simply that because it seems as though number 22

I could be supportive

10

contains other previously voted on and codified

11

exemptions, again, including the family parties and

12

camping as -- as an example.

13

So I'll -- I'll keep my -- my comments to

14

that, that Mr. Agaran's proposal in his May 25th be

15

incorporated into the other -- the private family

16

parties and camping and then the 72-hour time frame.

17

Now the only other thing about the 72-hour

18

time frame is that if we're going to be doing it for

19

the public

or excuse me, county-owned property,

20

that these

I guess these temporary tents or other

21

coverings would coincide with the permit of the

22

facility itself.

23

one tent up for 72 hours but only have the permit

24

for the area for 24 hours or 48 hours.

25

know how that language can be cleaned up, but it

In other words, you cannot leave

So I don't
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seems like we need to make it consistent.

2

And I would prefer, Mr. Chair, that if you do

3

consider that, if you do consider my -- my

4

individual comments and your recommendation, I -- I

5

would prefer to have the language cleaned up and

6

presented to us prior to any type of action.

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

10

11

14

And I think Mr. Buck may have -- I

don't know if he has any comments to that, but maybe
he can help us provide some insight to my comments.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

Mr. Buck, do you have some comments on the

12
13

So noted, Mr. Kane.

suggestions made by Member Kane?
MR. BUCK:

Yes, to answer -- Mr. Chair, to answer

15

Mr. Kane's question, when they set up a

16

event, the permit starts when they want to set up

17

and when they tear down.

18

have a 72-hour time frame is we're looking at a

19

Friday setup, event on saturday, and a Sunday

20

teardown, and I think that's where the 72 hours

21

come in.

22

for an

I think the reason why we

And that's been -- been the main standard

23

practice with a lot of these groups.

They -- they

24

have a big event on Saturday, so they spend all day

25
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1

cleaning up and tearing down.

2

a tent up for more than the permit process.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So they wouldn't have

And -- and so that would require the

4

applicant to pay for the three days on the

5

county-owned property if there's a permit fee for

6

per day or whatever it is or is it per event?

7

I'm just -- help refresh me, I'm sorry.

8

MR. BUCK:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

MR. BUCK:

And

They will pay per day -Yeah.

-- on the event.

I should clarify if they're

11

going more than three days and they're going to set

12

up a tent before the three days and after the three

13

days, so it's a total of five days, if it's a Type 5

14

activity, which is a commercial activity, then we're

15

required by code to get a resolution from County

16

Council to approve that.

17

start talking about some nonprofit issues that when

18

it's a Type 5 activity, then there is a

the

19

three-day.

two-day

20

event, take one day to set up, four days, we have to

21

come before you.

22
23

So that's where we -- we

So if they have a three-day

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And is there any inconsist -- I --

I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

Proceed.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So is there any inconsistency with --
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1

with Mr. Coloma-Agaran's request or his -- his

2

via his communication?

3

language that he's proposed?

4

MR. BUCK:

Are you aware of the

I'm reading it right now.

5

please.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Hold on a second,

And I'm glad that it's -- well, it

7

seems simplified so.

And -- and I should be

8

careful, Mr. Chair, because my -- my comments are in

9

the context of what I support and that would be

10

still incorporating the 72-hour component that

11

Member Mateo has -- has submitted in his original

12

transmittal.

13

respond, I can yield.

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

15

MR. BUCK:

16

And if Mr. Buck's not prepared to

Mr. Buck?

I'm not ready.

I'm -- I'll try to review it

and -- and I can respond with it later.

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Thank you.

Mr. Coloma-Agaran?
One thing I didn't mention about why

21

we wrote it the way we did is that if I remember the

22

original bill talked about up to 14 days.

23

didn't put any time period.

24

separate category so that basically the temporary

25

tent on County property would be linked to whatever

So we

And we have this as a
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1

permit they have with the owner of that property.

2

So if the Parks Department had an event for 14 days,

3

then it would be linked to that.

4

I

think you'd have to check with the Corp

5

Counsel whether they would still need to come back

6

to the Council (inaudible) over the amount of time

7

that they're authorized to issue that particular

8

type of permit.

9

simplified it so that it would incorporate the ideas

But we

we -- we just basically

10

from Councilmember Mateo's proposal, which also

11

mention the 14 days.

12

MR. BUCK:

I can comment on that.

Basically, we're kind

13

of in agreement.

14

for 14 days, I think we would -- the department

15

would really look at that structure because, you

16

know, the wind does blow and we've had the

17

experiences where you -- you take every measure and

18

the tent does blow sometimes.

19

through like 14 days or a extended period of time,

20

then I would start having concerns that if there's

21

-- the wind's blowing every day, that the roofs may

22

loosen up.

23

But if anything, if a tent is up

But when you go

We kind of like the 72-hour period because

24

that's been basically -- or most of our requests for

25

permits is the Friday setup -- Friday setup,
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saturday event, Sunday teardown.

2

than that based on the permit, I don't have a

3

problem with that.

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Buck.

But if it was more

Mr. Buck, if I could

5

ask you one quick question.

You know, as a concrete

6

example, I live in Makawao and recently we had the

7

Upcountry Fair.

8

Saturday and Sunday, but I believe they have the

9

tent set up by Friday and then I guess they have

And the event itself is actually

10

until, what, Monday to tear down the tents.

Can you

11

just briefly explain what they have to go through?
This is an annual event that I guess has

12
13

occurred over a number of years, but I've noticed

14

the tents have gone up sometimes even maybe two days

15

before the event.

16

under the permit, they're supposed to have it up no

17

earlier than at least, what, a day before the event?

18

MR. BUCK:

But

but technically, I guess,

No, that's -- they -- they -- usually on the

19

event in -- from past practices, they'll -- they

20

have an idea how long it takes them to set up the

21

event and tear down.

22

days to set up prior to the event, they -- they

23

would be issued a permit starting the day that they

24

want to start setting up and they -- and they would

25

be charged from those days on.

If it's going to take them two
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1

The Upcountry Fair, if I'm not mistaken, was

2

a nonprofit organization, it was co-sponsored, so

3

it'd be under a type two event.

4

fallon the guidelines of three consecutive days,

5

they'd need Council resolution.

6

example, it was a -- a for-profit entity, hotel or

7

an individual who's selling -- under the code a type

8

five entity, then if they were to have a two-day

9

event and took a day before to set up, a day after

So if it did not

If -- if for

10

the event to tear down which is four days, we would

11

have to come in front of the Council for resolution.

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you very much, Mr. Buck.

13

Members, at this time the Chair would like to

14

call for a very short recess to confer with staff on

15

this matter.

16

the Chair. (Gavel.)

17

RECESS: 11:30 a.m.

18

RECONVENE:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

Short recess subject to the call of

11:35 a.m.

(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

20

Committee meeting for July 8th is now reconvened.

21

At this time the Chair will recognize Member Mateo.

22

Member Mateo.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Chairman.

Chairman, I'd

24

like to ask Corp Counsel to clarify language on the

25

existing bill relative to the 14 consecutive days
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1

merely because this really was not part of my

2

original language.

3

the corporation Counsel.

4

explain.

5

MS. YOUNG:

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

7

MS. YOUNG:

So if you could kind of

Yes.
Corp Counsel?

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
The reason why we included the language

8
9

This was an addition by -- by

regarding the 14 consecutive days is because we

10

we just wanted to clarify what constituted a

11

temporary tent, and so our office worked with

12

council Staff, Council Services Staff, in crafting

13

that language to basically define fine temporary

14

tents.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Chairman.

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

All right.

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

20

Okay.

Thank you, Member Mateo.

Question.

Member Hokama?
So you're telling me today

temporary equals 14 days?

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Mr. Director?

22

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

If I may, the -- what the 14 days

23

though is linked to is the definition in the Maui

24

Planning Commission Rules and in the Molokai

25

Planning Commission Rules that talks about
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1

nonstructural improvements or temporary structures

2

where they talk about not more than 14 days.

3

think that's consistent with knowing that

4

the SMA area at least there's that 14-day period.

5

So it's already in there somewhere within the

6

County's law.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So I
that in

Is that -- Chairman, do you recall

8

under the banner ordinance what was temporary, seven

9

days, it would be seven days for that one?

10
11
12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Seven days, seven to ten days, I believe.

I believe it was seven days, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

No, I -- I thought Mr. Mateo's

13

question was very pertinent.

14

is this 14 days?

15

we're talking about, Chairman.

16

seven and -- and Ms. Tavares is correct --

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I mean, what -- what

Temporary is dependent upon what

I'll look it up.

So if banners is

I'm not sure.

corporation Counsel, in

19

Mr. Agaran's letter to us, the Director, under

20

number four where he had proposed additional

21

language, one of their comments is no objections to

22

elimination because Parks personnel can provide the

23

safety oversight.

24

sufficiently covered regarding potential lawsuits

25

and liability concerns, you're ready to write it in

So you're telling me that we are
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black and white?
MS. YOUNG:

They -- what it would require is for Parks to

3

be more, you know, more involved in regulating, you

4

know, the use of the park as far as safety.

5

we're not the insurers of safety, but because it is

6

our County facility, we would require -- you know,

7

the -- the Parks Department would have that

8

obligation to provide for safe use of our

9

facilities.

10

11
l2

13

Again,

And -- and if that occurred, then, you

know, we would not have liability concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

But they're not responsible to

enforce the building code?
MS. YOUNG:

Correct.

And under -- under a liability

14

analysis though, the -- the burden is really one of

15

reasonable care.

l6

necessarily mean that they have to meet the building

17

code, although that is currently -- you know, that

18

is currently the state of the law.

And so reasonable care doesn't

19

If the law were to be changed so that

20

building permits were no longer required for

21

temporary tents directed in our County facilities,

22

then, you know, that duty of reasonable care would

23

be the threshold and that would be, I think, at a

24

minimum insuring that obvious and open dangers or,

25

you know, temporary tents that are not -- that are
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1

very obviously not secured properly, that those be

2

taken care of in a timely manner by either the Parks

3

Department or they could work with the -- with the

4

owner of the tents.

5
6

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

with the owner of the tent, not the

applicant of the function?
MS. YOUNG:

Well, I -- I guess my point is that somehow

8

the Parks Department would have to make sure that a

9

tent that was not secured become secured.

Whether

10

that's on their own or with the owner or with the

11

applicant, you know, somehow they need to make sure

12

that it's secured because, you know, potentially

13

that's a -- that's a hazard or projectile, what have

14

you.

15
16

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

You're ready to put that in

writing, the liability issue?
MS. YOUNG:

Well, let -- I mean, let me preface that with,

18

you know, it's -- it's difficult for us to say in

19

all circumstances because liability is a very case

20

specific analysis.

21

facts and the specific circumstances, and -- and

22

it's really not possible for us to envision every

23

circumstance that could possibly come our way.

24

I am speaking in very general terms and

25

It's dependent on the specific

and based upon kind of the most obvious type of
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1

situation that we could foresee occurring in the

2

parks.

3

based on the language that is being proposed.

4

So I'm speaking in very general terms and

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So what level of Park personnel are

5

we talking about to provide the safety oversight, a

6

Mr. Buck, a Mr. District Supervisor, Park Caretaker

7

III?

8
9

MR. BUCK:

I think one -- one of our positions is anytime

we're issuing a permit is the safety aspect of the

10

event.

11

everybody enjoy themselves and have it marred by

12

some sort of incident that takes place.

13

We would hate to have a real nice event that

My recommendation -- one of my

14

recommendations maybe is the possibility of if we're

15

going do the exemption to the building permit is to

16

have a maximum square footage before it triggers the

17

building permit.

18

set up a -- erect a large, very large tent, I still

19

would require them or have my staff require them to

20

go get a building permit just to be sure that that

21

tent is safe.

22

work with the Fire Department to be sure that --

23

that it's safe.

24
25

Because if somebody was going to

I will also require the applicant to

As far as the inspection of the tents that
are being put up, our staff normally does go through
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1

the facility as the setup is being done.

From our

2

past experiences if -- where I've experienced that

3

if we do not work closely with the applicant during

4

the setup, then we've had where even though we've

5

told the applicant you cannot put something next to

6

someplace and the Fire Department comes by and cites

7

them for a violation of the Fire Code, even though

8

that we told them that if they put the tent there

9

and they didn't follow certain policies -- they
they would get cited for it, they'd put

10

would get

11

the blame on the Parks Department even though we had

12

advised them.

13

We try to go in there as much as possible.

14

Almost on all events is to have our staff members

15

just to walk through with the applicant to be sure

16

there's proper traffic flow, they'll walk with the

17

Fire Department if they're doing the inspection.

18

They're pretty good as far as if something doesn't

19

look safe just to talk to the applicant or setting

20

up.

21

In some instances when we have large tents,

22

they usually have a tent company that puts them up.

23

And if it looks insecure, then we -- we'll have the

24

tent company come back and resecure them.

25

take as many measures as possible.

We try to

And if it's a
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matter of doing a temporary structure if it's not a

2

tent, then we would rely on maybe our

3

of our construction-end people to take a look at it

4

to be sure it's safe.

5

effort to insure safety.

6

our -- more

But we do try and make every

And that's kind of why I wanted maybe a

7

maximum square footage before they would have to get

8

a building permit because I would hate to see a big

9

tarp tent go in and I have to tell the

if there's

10

no size, tell them they got to get a building permit

11

because I feel uncomfortable about the -- the

12

building permit.

13

how come so and so did not have to get -- even

14

though they had a smaller tent, they didn't have to

15

get a building permit, and I'm requiring one with a

16

larger building -- larger tent because I feel

17

uncomfortable about that large tent.

18

And they're going to say, well,

So I kind of would like to see if -- if there
a maximum

19

is to be an exemption that we have a

20

before it triggers a building permit or whatever

21

their -- requirements are required.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for that comment.

23

And I question -- I bring -- bring that up,

24

Mr. Chairman, because I can tell you now, Mr. Buck's

25

resources on Lanai is very small and we have County
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1

property that's considered parks.

2

to let that Worker III, Maintenance Worker III, or

3

whatever be the one to take care of the safety

4

concerns, I don't think so.

5

And we're going

Mr. Agaran, according to what I heard and I

6

think that was a good comment about maybe we need to

7

look at what triggers additional consideration, an

8

eight by ten blue tarpaulin that people like to

9

string up with their elastic bands on aluminum

10

poles, is that considered a tent if -- if erected

11

that way?

12

like a tent, but is that really a tent?

13

Because a lot of small groups use that as

Because, I mean, and (inaudible) because

14

because, okay, when I'm talking tent, I -- I'm

15

hoping the Members now, I'm talking this big thing

16

that you cannot put up yourself.

17

three-inch thick ropes, you -- you got three-feet

18

spikes, a lot of times it goes into our asphalt in

19

our County parking lots digging up our stalls.

20

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

It is anchored by

Generally it's -- the Uniform Building

21

Code defines what falls -- what is required for a

22

building permit would be any structure that is built

23

or constructed, an edifice or building of any kind

24

or any piece of work artificially built up or

25

composed of parts joined together in some definite
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manner.

2

structure you just described would be something that

3

requires a building permit if it doesn't fall within

4

some exemption within the code.

5
6

So given that kind of definition, the

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

basically, Mr. Director, any covering on a frame?

7

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

9

10
11

Anything on a -- on a frame,

Generally.
And again, at this point we're not

-- there's no size considerations, minimum or -- or
maximums in the language.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

No, there's not.

The -- the only

12

exemptions are for the private family parties or

13

camping or for the -- the 12-hour erections on a

14

daily basis.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

Corporation Counsel, you

16

know, okay, I -- I mean, I understand what Mr. Mateo

17

is -- and I -- I

18

variance, the great variance between those that we

19

really need to be concerned about and those that --

20

and I can understand his proposal.

21

you know, I'm aware of the

When we -- we -- we talked about what the

22

Director just brought up about private camping or

23

family camping, that is regardless of where they

24

camp, public property or private property, it --

25

it's regardless of size of the -- the shelter?
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1

I'm just curious if there's something we can go on

2

besides just the term tent.

3

MS. YOUNG:

My -- my understanding of -- of the genesis of

4

that language is that it was meant to exempt

5

parties.

6

that the -- the language doesn't state the intent,

7

but the intent was for tents that are primarily on

8

-- for -- at least for private family parties, it's

9

primarily for events where it's on residential

And

and although the -- I should say

10

property.

11

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

12

MS. YOUNG:

So, you know, a tent

Right.

And is not open to the public.

And so this was intended, I believe,

13

for events where the -- where somebody was going to

14

be there all the time to kind of make sure that the

15

tent's going to stay there.

16

residential, you know, carport type of -- type of

17

tent, that kind of thing, or for

18

parties where it's, you know, an extension of your

19

of your house or for camping where you're going

So, you know, a

for family

20

to be there, and

21

that it's not going to blow away or, you know,

22

become some kind of a hazard for other -- others in

23

the area.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

and so you can kind of make sure

Okay, okay.

I understand what

you're saying and that's why I can understand some
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1

of the testimony, Members, one by Mr. Helle.

You

2

are aware he's related to me by marriage.

3

Liquor Department, to get the license, must have an

4

authorized person that passes the liquor test on

5

site at all times, on -- at all times.

6

cleared by the Liquor Control has to be there as

7

protection or -- or safety or whatever regarding

8

intoxication.

Because

A person

So on -- on those cases, then, Chairman, I --

9

10

I can say I'll be willing to be more flexible

11

because other departments require on site a

12

responsible individual that the County has

13

authorized to a test, the test.

14

the test to pass and you're certified.

15

relax on certain -- because we've insured other

16

liability concerns in another manner, Chairman.

17

I assume you take
I can see us

Is there anybody else besides Liquor that

18

requires that you're aware of, corporation Counsel?

19

And -- and then again, that's only if they want to

20

serve liquor now.

21

MR. BUCK:

If there is a tent -- in some of our events, if

22

there's a tent that's left up overnight, we tell the

23

applicant we're not responsible for the tent

24

overnight.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Vandalism.
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MR. BUCK:

Correct.

So we do allow them and we will give

2

them an extra permit to coincide with the camping

3

permit to have security on duty or we tell them to

4

hire security_

5

(inaudible) one picks up, then there is somebody

6

there overnight.

7

County.

8

come in Saturday morning and the tent's gone, I

9

don't want the County to be responsible for that

10
11
12
13

So in regards to that, it's -- it is

And it's more to protect the

If I was to set up the tent Friday and I

tent disappearing.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Right, right, right.

my questions, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Hokama.

14

Any other last questions or comments?

15

Tavares?

16

Thank you for

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Member

Yeah, on the banner, the temporary

17

banners, it cannot be erected more than seven days

18

prior to the event and must be taken down one day

19

after the event for no more than 14 consecutive

20

days.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you for that -Thank you.

-- information.

24

All righty, Members, the -- your Chair's

25

recommendation at this time based upon comments
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1

shared here today and additional concerns, the Chair

2

initially was

3

something out of Committee today.

4

light of the concerns, the Chair will draft a letter

5

to the Administration basically seeking comments or

6

suggestions as how we can improve the permit process

7

and how to streamline it, as well as any of some of

8

the other concerns related to the language that's in

9

the proposed bill.

was very optimistic about moving
But however, in

10

I believe the -- there was a concern about --

11

from Member Kane relating to, I guess, Public Works'

12

response versus the proposed ordinance relating to

13

the 72 hours.

14

Mr. Director, you -- just for the record, you are

15

still in support of the 72 hours on County property

16

that's incorporated in the proposed bill?

17

asking, basically seeking clarification on that.

18

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

If I may ask the Director,

I'm just

I -- I think the Department's position

19

is it will be up to the agency that actually

20

controls the property.

21

give out a permit for five days and was willing to

22

come to the Council, you know, it doesn't bother us

23

because we're going to be creating an exemption from

24

our process.

25

it -- it doesn't matter to us.

So if Parks was willing to

So whether it's 72 hours or two weeks,
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CHAIR MOLINA:

2

Hokama?

3

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Member

And -- and Chairman, normally Parks

4

has improved.

But if you're going to ask for use of

5

County property for a extended period of time,

6

there's no way you do last-minute planning because,

7

one, you don't even know if -- availability of the

8

facility unless you go -- you know, I mean, you

9

start your planning way in advance.

So comments

10

that it's too short, this, this, this, one, I would

11

say they either in the wrong business or they need

12

to just plan better.

13

some of this as -- as a legitimate reason why the

14

processes aren't good enough.

But I'm not using time for

15

But I wanted to ask since you -- I don't know

16

if you requested Mr. Yoshida, does Planning have any

17

additional comment that may -- may help --

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

20

proposal.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Expedite the process?

Mr. Yoshida?

At least help -- at least help this

Would you like to come up with any

22

additional comments on how this process can be

23

expedited?

24
25

MR. YOSHIDA:

Mr. Chairman, Committee Members, my only

comment would be I guess the Department will look
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1

internally as to how it can try to streamline its

2

process, review process, relative to this SMA

3

review.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And?

I mean, you just told -- if I

may, Chairman?

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

Proceed.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Mr. Yoshida, you told us you guys

8

in the process of reviewing, but -- so can we get

9

comment in one week, one month, are you going to

10

communicate to this Committee or to Mr. Mateo whose

11

initiative is part

12

proposal, when are we going to receive comments back

13

from your department, Mr. Yoshida?

14

MR. YOSHIDA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

part of this discussion, his

I think we could do it within two weeks.
I think that could help in the

16

crafting of improvement of this consideration,

17

Chairman.

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

20
21

So noted.
So if you'd write a letter that we

anticipate comments in a reasonable two-week period.
CHAIR MOLINA:

So noted.

The Chair agrees that the Chair

22

would like to see this matter expedited.

23

stated earlier, the Chair's intention is not to move

24

anything out today, but I would like to bring this

25

back to Committee as soon as possible citing the
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1

concerns that Member Mateo had, as well as others in

2

the community about -- you know, it's been talked

3

about for so long about streamlining this or

4

streamlining that.

5

make a real concerted effort to address this

6

concern.

Well, it's time for us now to

So again, as I stated earlier, we will make

7
8

any necessary adjustments to the language.

And,

9

Members, feel free along the way if you have some

10

additional comments or suggestions to the Committee

11

Chair and Staff.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

14

Hokama?

15

Chairman?

And we'll make those revisions.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Member

And -- and maybe I need to have

16

Ms. Tavares kind of reach back in her memory

17

cabinet.

18

of the initial intents of the plan review fee was to

19

help relieve bottlenecks in the process for

20

approval, and -- and so we've adjusted the fees and

21

we collect money and it's part of the budget.

22

But I -- you know, without reading the

If I can kind of recall that -- that one

23

ordinance again and that's why -- and Corp Counsel

24

may need to follow up for us, I think the Planning

25

Department can utilize or DSA under Mr. Director
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1

Agaran's department for them to use some of these

2

monies to maybe once a week hire one guy, temporary

3

hire, emergency, whatever we want to call it, for,

4

say, like four hours a day for a week or whatever,

5

grab these permits and get them processed, use the

6

money the people paid in the permit fee system to

7

take care of these kind of things.

8

option.

That's an

And maybe Mr. Agaran, the Director going say,

9

10

we could but this or that regarding the fee or the

11

fee amount or that we can look at it, but I think

12

there's mechanisms in the code that Council has

13

enacted including the use of plan permit fees.

14

maybe just instead of a building permit fee, we'll

15

just call it a tent processing fee --

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And

Uh-huh.
-- and -- and allow the departments

18

some of the -- the discretion the Director, I

19

believe, I -- I believe he has already, Chairman, as

20

another way of taking care of a concern that

21

Mr. Mateo did bring to our attention this morning.

22

Thank you.

23
24
25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Hokama.

At this point,

any suggestions are helpful.
So with that being said, any final comments,
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1

Members?

2

matter will be deferred.

3

COUNCIL MEMBER VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

4

ACTION:

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

If there are no objections, this

DEFER pending further discussion.

okay.

Thank you, Members.

This concludes

6

our items for today's meeting.

Again, the Chair

7

would like to thank everyone for their desire and

8

dedication to serve the public.
We do have a Parks and Agriculture meeting

9

10

and site inspection today.

11

inspection is at 2:00 o'clock today to be followed

12

by a 3:00 o'clock Parks meeting at the Paia

13

Community Center.

14

information.

17

So just for everyone's

So with that being said, it is 12:00 o'clock.

15
16

I believe the site

This meeting is adjourned.
ADJOURN:

(Gavel.)

12:00 p.m.

18
19

20
21
22
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C E R T I F I CAT E

1

2

STATE OF HAWAII

)

3

4

)

CITY AND COUNTY OF MAUl

SS.

)

5

6

I, Cristina V. Llewellyn, certified Shorthand

7

Reporter for the state of Hawaii, hereby certify that the

8

proceedings were taken down by me in machine shorthand and

9

was thereafter reduced to typewritten form under my

10

supervision; that the foregoing represents to the best of

11

my ability, a true and correct transcript of the

12

proceedings had in the foregoing matter.

13

I further certify that I am not attorney for any of

14

the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the

15

cause.

16
17

DATED this 30th day of July, 2004, in Honolulu,
Hawaii.
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